
 

4913-2966-0687, v. 5 

   
 
   Board of Directors 

             San Simeon Community Services District  
 
 

 
 
 

        
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING PACKET 

       February 20, 2025  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4913-2966-0687, v. 5 

 
SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Thursday, February 20, 2025 
                                                        1350 MAIN STREET 

      (Coast Unified Board Room) 
CAMBRIA, CA 93428 

  6:00 p.m. 
SSCSD Zoom Meeting  

 
SSCSD Zoom Meeting 
Scheduled: Feb 20, 2025 at 5:30 PM to 9:00 PM, PST 
Join Zoom Meeting 
 
https://zoom.us/j/92198491039?pwd=jwUq4XuVpFzBEyxQ50d2aOBxvLMj4s.1 
 
Meeting ID: 921 9849 1039 
Passcode: 528244 
 
Dial by your location 
• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
 
Agendas: Agenda packets and other written documentation are available for public inspection 72 
hours prior to the regularly scheduled meeting at the San Simeon CSD office, located at 111 Pico 
Avenue, San Simeon, during normal business hours. Any agenda-related writings or documents 
provided to a majority of the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available 
for public inspection at the same time. Agendas are also posted at: www.sansimeoncsd.org.  
 
Public Comment: The Board of Directors welcomes and encourages participation in Board 
meetings. Public comment will be allowed for each individual agenda item. Members of the public 
wishing to speak may do so when recognized by the Chairperson. Public Comment is limited 
to three (3) minutes or less per person for each agenda item, with additional time at the discretion 
of the Chair. Public comments should be directed to the Board as a whole and not directed to 
individual Board members or District staff. 

Notice regarding Americans with Disabilities Act: 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting or if you need the agenda or the documents 
in the agenda packet provided in an alternative format, please contact District staff 
at (805) 927-4778 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting to ensure that reasonable 
arrangements can be made (28CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA TITLE II). 

 

http://www.sansimeoncsd.org/


 

4913-2966-0687, v. 5 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 

Any member of the public may address the Board relating to any matter pertaining 
to District business and within the Board’s authority to take action, provided the 
matter is not on the Board’s agenda.  Comments are limited to three (3) minutes 
or less with additional time at the discretion of the Chairperson. The public wishing 
to address the Board on items that do not appear on the agenda may do so; 
however, the Board will take no action other than referring the item to staff for study 
and analysis and may place the item on a future agenda.  
 

5. NON-DISTRICT REPORTS:  
Public comments at the conclusion of non-district reports are limited to three (3) 
minutes per person per item. 

A. Sheriff’s Report - Stated Verbal Report 
 

6. DISTRICT STAFF & COMMITTEE REPORTS:  
Public comments at the conclusion of District staff and committee reports are 
limited to three (3) minutes per person per item. 
 

A. STAFF REPORTS:  
i. FRM Operations Report – Summary of December and January Activities. 
ii. Interim General Manager’s Report – Summary of December and January 

Activities   
iii. District Financial Summary – Summary of November, December and January 

Financials. 
iv. District Counsel’s Report – Summary of December and January Activities.  
v. Reorganization Committee Report- Summary of November, December, and 

January Activities 
    

7. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS: 
All items are approved by a single action. Any item may be removed from the 
Consent Calendar for separate discussion upon request from a member of the 
public, District staff or a Director. Public comment on the Consent Calendar will 
take place prior to the Board’s vote on the Consent Calendar items. Unless an item 
is pulled for separate consideration by the Board, the following items are 
recommended for approval without further discussion. 
 



 

4913-2966-0687, v. 5 

 
 

A. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE MEETING ON DECEMBER  5, 2024 
B. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF DECEMBER 2024 AND JANUARY 2025 

DISBURSEMENTS JOURNAL 
 

8. BUSINESS ACTION ITEMS  
Public comments at the conclusion of each business action item are limited to three 
(3) minutes per person per item. 
 

A. Review and Approval of the SSCSD FY 2023-2024 Audit Report.  
B. Presentation and Discussion regarding the Proposed Prop 218 Rate 

Increase of 12%  
C. Review and Discussion of San Luis Obispo County RFP for 

Reorganization Consultant 
D. Discussion and Approval of the Replacement of the Broken Water 

Meters 
 
9. CLOSED SESSION: 

Public comments on the closed session agenda are limited to three (3) minutes 
per person per item. The Board will adjourn to Closed Session to address the 
following item(s): 

 
A. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT (Gov. Code, § 54957) 

 Title: Interim General Manager 
 

B. REPORT UPON CONCLUSION OF CLOSED SESSION  
Once a closed session has been completed, the legislative body must 
convene in an open session. (§ 54957.7(b).) If the legislative body took 
final action in the closed session, the body may be required to make a 
report of the action taken and the vote thereon to the public at the open 
session. (§ 54957.1(a).) The report may be made either orally or in writing. 
(§ 54957.1(b).) In the case of a contract or settlement of a lawsuit, copies 
of the document also must be disclosed as soon as possible. (§ 
54957.1(b) and (c).)   

 
C. RECONVENE AND REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 

 
 

D. BOARD COMMENTS:  
 

This section is intended as an opportunity for Board members to make brief 
announcements, request information from staff, request future agenda item(s) and/or 



 

4913-2966-0687, v. 5 

report on their own activities related to District business.  No action is to be taken until an 
item is placed on a future agenda.  
 
10. ADJOURNMENT TO THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING TO BE HELD ON MARCH 

06, 2025. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



State Water Resources Control Board Division of Drinking Water

System Name System Number

Sampling Period Month Year

1. Routine Samples (see note 1) 0 0
2. Repeat Samples following samples that are Total Coliform
    Positive and E.coli  Negative (see notes 2, 10 and 11)

3. Repeat Samples following Routine Samples that are
   Total Coliform Positive and E. coli  Positive

(see notes 2, 3, 10 and 11)

4.  Coliform Treatment Technique (TT) Trigger Exceedance &
       E.coli MCL Computation for TC/E. coli  Positive Samples

a. Totals (sum of columns)  

b. If 40 or more samples collected in month, determine
    percent of samples that are total coliform positive
    [(total number positive/total number collected) x 100]  = %

c. Did the system violate the E. coli  MCL (see notes 2 through 5)? Yes No
    Did the system exceed…  …a Level 2 Coliform TT trigger? Yes No

(see notes 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 for trigger info)
If yes, see note 8 below.

 ...a Level 1 Coliform TT trigger? Yes  No
(see note 7 for trigger info)

If yes, see note 9 below.

5. Triggered Source Samples per Groundwater Rule
(see notes 12 and 13)

6. Invalidated Samples
(Note what samples, if any, were invalidated; the lab who authorized the invalidation; and when replacement samples
were collected.  Attach additional sheets, if necessary.)

7. Summary Completed By:
Name/Signature Title Date

NOTES AND INSTRUCTIONS:
1. Routine samples include:

a. Samples required pursuant to 22 CCR Section 64423 and any additional samples required by an approved routine sample siting plan established pursuant to 22 CCR Section 64422. 
b. Extra samples for systems with high source water turbidities that are using surface water or groundwater under direct influence of surface water and
   do not practice filtration in compliance with regulations;

Notes 2-5 (boxed entries) are E. coli  MCL violations and require immediate notification to the Division (22 CCR, Section 64426.1):
2. Any E.coli positive repeat following a total coliform positive sample.
3. A total coliform positive repeat, following an E.coli positive routine sample.
4. Failure to take all required repeat samples following an E. coli positive routine sample.
5. Failure to test for E. coli when any repeat sample tests positive for total coliform
6. Second Level 1 coliform treatment technique trigger exceedance in a rolling 12-month period.
7. Level 1 Coliform Treatment Technique (TT) Triggers:

a. For systems collecting less than 40 samples, if two or more samples are total coliform positive, then the TT is exceeded and a Level 1 Assessment is required.
b. For systems collecting 40 or more samples, if more than 5.0 percent of samples collected are total coliform positive, then the TT is exceeded and a Level 1 Assessment is required.

8. Contact the Division as soon as practical to arrange for the Division to conduct a Level 2 Assessment of the water system.  The water system shall complete a Level 2 
Assessment and submit it to the Division within 30 days of learning of the trigger exceedance.

9. Conduct a Level 1 Assessment as soon as practical that covers the minimum elements (22 CCR, Section 64426.8 (a)(2).  Submit the report to the Division
within 30 days of learning of the trigger exceedance.

10. Positive results and their associated repeat samples are to be tracked on the Coliform Monitoring Worksheet.
11. Repeat samples must be collected within 24 hours of being notified of the positive results.  At least 3 repeat samples must be collected for each total coliform positive sample.
12. For systems subject to the Groundwater Rule: Positive results and the associated triggered source samples are to be tracked on the Coliform Monitoring Worksheet.
13. For triggered sample(s) required as a result of a total coliform routine positive sample, an E.coli  positive triggered sample (boxed entry) requires immediate notification to
     the Division, Tier 1 public notification, and corrective action. Updated 8/4/2021

1 2

     MONTHLY SUMMARY OF REVISED TOTAL COLIFORM RULE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM MONITORING
(For public water systems serving more than 400 service connections OR 1,000 persons, OR wholesaler systems)

(Includes triggered source monitoring reporting for Groundwater Rule compliance)

San Simeon CSD 4000568

January 2025

Number
Required

Number
Collected

Number Total
Coliform 
Positives

Number 
E.coli 

Positives

0 0 0

0 0 0

Compliance Manager

c. If a trigger is exceeded as a result of a total coliform positive repeat sample, the system must notify the Division by the end of business day, section     64424(c)

1 2 0 0

0 00

02/07/2025Cara Aguiar



Project:

Project Number:

Project Manager:

Fluid Resource Management

2385 Precision Drive Routine (JANUARY)

Fluid Resource Management

San Simeon CSD - Drinking Water

01/17/2025 11:31Arroyo Grande CA, 93420

Oilfield Environmental & Compliance, Inc.

2500353

WO & Reported:

Analytical Report for Samples

Lab Faucet Sampled : 01/13/25 07:16

Lab ID : 2500353-01

Matrix : Drinking Water

Sample ID : 

Sampled by : Jason Molinari

Field Data : ResCl= 3.3mg/L  

[TOC_1]2500353-01 (Drinking 

Units Dilution Notes MethodAnalyzedRL BatchAnalyte Result

[TOC_2]Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods[TOC]

Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods

ND SM 9223B01/14/25 10:42MPN/100 

mL

B5A04001Coliform, total 1.0

ND """ ""E. Coli 1.0

Well 1 Sampled : 01/13/25 09:22

Lab ID : 2500353-02

Matrix : Drinking Water

Sample ID : 

Sampled by : Jason Molinari

Field Data : ResCl= 0mg/L  

[TOC_1]2500353-02 (Drinking 

Units Dilution Notes MethodAnalyzedRL BatchAnalyte Result

Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods

ND SM 9223B01/14/25 10:43MPN/100 

mL

B5A04001Coliform, total 1.0

ND """ ""E. Coli 1.0

[TOC_2]Anions by IC[TOC]

Anions by IC

EPA 300.034 B5A0401 01/14/25 06:09mg/L 10Chloride 4.0

[TOC_2]Total Metals by ICP[TOC]

Total Metals by ICP

ND EPA 200.701/16/25 10:56mg/L B5A04461Iron 0.050

[TOC_2]General Chemistry Parameters by EPA or APHA Standard Methods[TOC]

General Chemistry Parameters by EPA or APHA Standard Methods

SM 2510B670 B5A0496 01/15/25 14:04umhos/cm 1Specific Conductance (EC) @ 25 C 2.0

SM 2540C350 B5A0494 01/15/25 16:00mg/L "Total Dissolved Solids 10

The results in this report apply to the samples analyzed in accordance with the chain of custody document. This analytical report must be reproduced in its entirety.

Page 3 of 10

307 Roemer Way, Santa Maria, CA 93454

TEL: (805) 922-4772

FAX: (805) 925-3376www.oecusa.com

client.oec.com\reportsClient Connect:CA-ELAP 2438, TNI02666

Page 3 of 11



Project:

Project Number:

Project Manager:

Fluid Resource Management

2385 Precision Drive Routine (JANUARY)

Fluid Resource Management

San Simeon CSD - Drinking Water

01/17/2025 11:31Arroyo Grande CA, 93420

Oilfield Environmental & Compliance, Inc.

2500353

WO & Reported:

Analytical Report for Samples

Well 2 Sampled : 01/13/25 09:28

Lab ID : 2500353-03

Matrix : Drinking Water

Sample ID : 

Sampled by : Jason Molinari

Field Data : ResCl= 0mg/L  

[TOC_1]2500353-03 (Drinking 

Units Dilution Notes MethodAnalyzedRL BatchAnalyte Result

[TOC_2]Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods[TOC]

Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods

ND SM 9223B01/14/25 10:43MPN/100 

mL

B5A04001Coliform, total 1.0

ND """ ""E. Coli 1.0

[TOC_2]Anions by IC[TOC]

Anions by IC

EPA 300.029 B5A0401 01/14/25 06:25mg/L 10Chloride 4.0

[TOC_2]Total Metals by ICP[TOC]

Total Metals by ICP

ND EPA 200.701/16/25 10:59mg/L B5A04461Iron 0.050

[TOC_2]General Chemistry Parameters by EPA or APHA Standard Methods[TOC]

General Chemistry Parameters by EPA or APHA Standard Methods

SM 2510B650 B5A0496 01/15/25 14:04umhos/cm 1Specific Conductance (EC) @ 25 C 2.0

SM 2540C340 B5A0494 01/15/25 16:00mg/L "Total Dissolved Solids 10

The results in this report apply to the samples analyzed in accordance with the chain of custody document. This analytical report must be reproduced in its entirety.

Page 4 of 10

307 Roemer Way, Santa Maria, CA 93454

TEL: (805) 922-4772

FAX: (805) 925-3376www.oecusa.com

client.oec.com\reportsClient Connect:CA-ELAP 2438, TNI02666

Page 4 of 11



Project:

Project Number:

Project Manager:

Fluid Resource Management

2385 Precision Drive Routine (Every Other Week - SWTR)

Fluid Resource Management

San Simeon CSD - Drinking Water

01/28/2025 12:13Arroyo Grande CA, 93420

Oilfield Environmental & Compliance, Inc.

2500772

WO & Reported:

Analytical Report for Samples

Lab Faucet Sampled : 01/27/25 08:16

Lab ID : 2500772-01

Matrix : Drinking Water

Sample ID : 

Sampled by : Jason Molinari

Field Data : ResCl= 3.2mg/L  

[TOC_1]2500772-01 (Drinking 

Units Dilution Notes MethodAnalyzedRL BatchAnalyte Result

[TOC_2]Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods[TOC]

Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods

ND SM 9223B01/28/25 10:26MPN/100 

mL

B5A09641Coliform, total 1.0

ND """ ""E. Coli 1.0

Well 1 Sampled : 01/27/25 09:12

Lab ID : 2500772-02

Matrix : Drinking Water

Sample ID : 

Sampled by : Jason Molinari

Field Data : ResCl= 0mg/L  

[TOC_1]2500772-02 (Drinking 

Units Dilution Notes MethodAnalyzedRL BatchAnalyte Result

Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods

SM 9223B1.0 B5A0964 01/28/25 10:27MPN/100 

mL

1Coliform, total 1.0 MCL

ND """ ""E. Coli 1.0

Well 2 Sampled : 01/27/25 09:16

Lab ID : 2500772-03

Matrix : Drinking Water

Sample ID : 

Sampled by : Jason Molinari

Field Data : ResCl= 0mg/L  

[TOC_1]2500772-03 (Drinking 

Units Dilution Notes MethodAnalyzedRL BatchAnalyte Result

Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods

ND SM 9223B01/28/25 10:28MPN/100 

mL

B5A09641Coliform, total 1.0

ND """ ""E. Coli 1.0

The results in this report apply to the samples analyzed in accordance with the chain of custody document. This analytical report must be reproduced in its entirety.

Page 3 of 6

307 Roemer Way, Santa Maria, CA 93454

TEL: (805) 922-4772

FAX: (805) 925-3376www.oecusa.com

client.oec.com\reportsClient Connect:CA-ELAP 2438, TNI02666

Page 3 of 7



Project:

Project Number:

Project Manager:

Fluid Resource Management

2385 Precision Drive Routine (Every Other Week - SWTR)

Fluid Resource Management

San Simeon CSD - Drinking Water

01/28/2025 12:13Arroyo Grande CA, 93420

Oilfield Environmental & Compliance, Inc.

2500772

WO & Reported:

Sample Method Summary

Laboratory & CertificationMethodAnalysis Matrix

Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods

SM 9223B OEC, InternalColiform, Total QT MPN 

SM9223B

Drinking Water

SM 9223B OEC, InternalE.coli QT MPN SM9223B Drinking Water

Notes and Definitions [TOC_1]Notes and Definitions[TOC]

DefinitionQualifier

MDL

Relative Percent DifferenceRPD

Analyte NOT DETECTED at or above the method limit (MDL)ND

Method Detection Limit

Reporting Limit  (Quantitation Limit)RL

MCL Analyte concentration is greater than or equal to the California Maximum Contaminant Limit.

TMP3 Temperature [Out-Acceptable] Direct from Field

The results in this report apply to the samples analyzed in accordance with the chain of custody document. This analytical report must be reproduced in its entirety.

Page 4 of 6

307 Roemer Way, Santa Maria, CA 93454

TEL: (805) 922-4772

FAX: (805) 925-3376www.oecusa.com

client.oec.com\reportsClient Connect:CA-ELAP 2438, TNI02666

Page 4 of 7



QUARTERLY SUMMARY OF RAW GROUNDWATER COLIFORM MONITORING         

Water System Name Water System Number

Sampling Period:

<1

<1 <1

<1 <1

<1

1/27/25 9:16 AM

1/27/25 9:12 AM 1 <1

E. coli                    
(P/A or MPN)

For groundwater (not GWUDI) sources that are treated with a primary or residual disinfectant on a continuous basis
Samples must be taken prior to chlorination.  If a quarterly sample is total coliform positive, sampling must increase to monthly.

San Simeon CSD 4000568

Month January Year 2025

Well Name/Number Status 
(On/Off) Sample Time & Date Total Coliforms                

(P/A or MPN)

Well 1
CA4000568_001_001 OFF 1/13/25 9:22 AM

Well 2
CA4000568_002_002 ON 1/13/25 9:28 AM

Well 2
CA4000568_002_002 ON

Well 1
CA4000568_001_001 OFF



Project:

Project Number:

Project Manager:

Fluid Resource Management

2385 Precision Drive Routine (JANUARY)

Fluid Resource Management

San Simeon CSD - Drinking Water

01/17/2025 11:31Arroyo Grande CA, 93420

Oilfield Environmental & Compliance, Inc.

2500353

WO & Reported:

Analytical Report for Samples

Lab Faucet Sampled : 01/13/25 07:16

Lab ID : 2500353-01

Matrix : Drinking Water

Sample ID : 

Sampled by : Jason Molinari

Field Data : ResCl= 3.3mg/L  

[TOC_1]2500353-01 (Drinking 

Units Dilution Notes MethodAnalyzedRL BatchAnalyte Result

[TOC_2]Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods[TOC]

Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods

ND SM 9223B01/14/25 10:42MPN/100 

mL

B5A04001Coliform, total 1.0

ND """ ""E. Coli 1.0

Well 1 Sampled : 01/13/25 09:22

Lab ID : 2500353-02

Matrix : Drinking Water

Sample ID : 

Sampled by : Jason Molinari

Field Data : ResCl= 0mg/L  

[TOC_1]2500353-02 (Drinking 

Units Dilution Notes MethodAnalyzedRL BatchAnalyte Result

Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods

ND SM 9223B01/14/25 10:43MPN/100 

mL

B5A04001Coliform, total 1.0

ND """ ""E. Coli 1.0

[TOC_2]Anions by IC[TOC]

Anions by IC

EPA 300.034 B5A0401 01/14/25 06:09mg/L 10Chloride 4.0

[TOC_2]Total Metals by ICP[TOC]

Total Metals by ICP

ND EPA 200.701/16/25 10:56mg/L B5A04461Iron 0.050

[TOC_2]General Chemistry Parameters by EPA or APHA Standard Methods[TOC]

General Chemistry Parameters by EPA or APHA Standard Methods

SM 2510B670 B5A0496 01/15/25 14:04umhos/cm 1Specific Conductance (EC) @ 25 C 2.0

SM 2540C350 B5A0494 01/15/25 16:00mg/L "Total Dissolved Solids 10

The results in this report apply to the samples analyzed in accordance with the chain of custody document. This analytical report must be reproduced in its entirety.

Page 3 of 10

307 Roemer Way, Santa Maria, CA 93454

TEL: (805) 922-4772

FAX: (805) 925-3376www.oecusa.com

client.oec.com\reportsClient Connect:CA-ELAP 2438, TNI02666

Page 3 of 11



Project:

Project Number:

Project Manager:

Fluid Resource Management

2385 Precision Drive Routine (JANUARY)

Fluid Resource Management

San Simeon CSD - Drinking Water

01/17/2025 11:31Arroyo Grande CA, 93420

Oilfield Environmental & Compliance, Inc.

2500353

WO & Reported:

Analytical Report for Samples

Well 2 Sampled : 01/13/25 09:28

Lab ID : 2500353-03

Matrix : Drinking Water

Sample ID : 

Sampled by : Jason Molinari

Field Data : ResCl= 0mg/L  

[TOC_1]2500353-03 (Drinking 

Units Dilution Notes MethodAnalyzedRL BatchAnalyte Result

[TOC_2]Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods[TOC]

Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods

ND SM 9223B01/14/25 10:43MPN/100 

mL

B5A04001Coliform, total 1.0

ND """ ""E. Coli 1.0

[TOC_2]Anions by IC[TOC]

Anions by IC

EPA 300.029 B5A0401 01/14/25 06:25mg/L 10Chloride 4.0

[TOC_2]Total Metals by ICP[TOC]

Total Metals by ICP

ND EPA 200.701/16/25 10:59mg/L B5A04461Iron 0.050

[TOC_2]General Chemistry Parameters by EPA or APHA Standard Methods[TOC]

General Chemistry Parameters by EPA or APHA Standard Methods

SM 2510B650 B5A0496 01/15/25 14:04umhos/cm 1Specific Conductance (EC) @ 25 C 2.0

SM 2540C340 B5A0494 01/15/25 16:00mg/L "Total Dissolved Solids 10

The results in this report apply to the samples analyzed in accordance with the chain of custody document. This analytical report must be reproduced in its entirety.

Page 4 of 10

307 Roemer Way, Santa Maria, CA 93454

TEL: (805) 922-4772

FAX: (805) 925-3376www.oecusa.com

client.oec.com\reportsClient Connect:CA-ELAP 2438, TNI02666

Page 4 of 11



Project:

Project Number:

Project Manager:

Fluid Resource Management

2385 Precision Drive Routine (Every Other Week - SWTR)

Fluid Resource Management

San Simeon CSD - Drinking Water

01/28/2025 12:13Arroyo Grande CA, 93420

Oilfield Environmental & Compliance, Inc.

2500772

WO & Reported:

Analytical Report for Samples

Lab Faucet Sampled : 01/27/25 08:16

Lab ID : 2500772-01

Matrix : Drinking Water

Sample ID : 

Sampled by : Jason Molinari

Field Data : ResCl= 3.2mg/L  

[TOC_1]2500772-01 (Drinking 

Units Dilution Notes MethodAnalyzedRL BatchAnalyte Result

[TOC_2]Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods[TOC]

Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods

ND SM 9223B01/28/25 10:26MPN/100 

mL

B5A09641Coliform, total 1.0

ND """ ""E. Coli 1.0

Well 1 Sampled : 01/27/25 09:12

Lab ID : 2500772-02

Matrix : Drinking Water

Sample ID : 

Sampled by : Jason Molinari

Field Data : ResCl= 0mg/L  

[TOC_1]2500772-02 (Drinking 

Units Dilution Notes MethodAnalyzedRL BatchAnalyte Result

Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods

SM 9223B1.0 B5A0964 01/28/25 10:27MPN/100 

mL

1Coliform, total 1.0 MCL

ND """ ""E. Coli 1.0

Well 2 Sampled : 01/27/25 09:16

Lab ID : 2500772-03

Matrix : Drinking Water

Sample ID : 

Sampled by : Jason Molinari

Field Data : ResCl= 0mg/L  

[TOC_1]2500772-03 (Drinking 

Units Dilution Notes MethodAnalyzedRL BatchAnalyte Result

Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods

ND SM 9223B01/28/25 10:28MPN/100 

mL

B5A09641Coliform, total 1.0

ND """ ""E. Coli 1.0

The results in this report apply to the samples analyzed in accordance with the chain of custody document. This analytical report must be reproduced in its entirety.

Page 3 of 6

307 Roemer Way, Santa Maria, CA 93454

TEL: (805) 922-4772

FAX: (805) 925-3376www.oecusa.com

client.oec.com\reportsClient Connect:CA-ELAP 2438, TNI02666

Page 3 of 7



Project:

Project Number:

Project Manager:

Fluid Resource Management

2385 Precision Drive Routine (Every Other Week - SWTR)

Fluid Resource Management

San Simeon CSD - Drinking Water

01/28/2025 12:13Arroyo Grande CA, 93420

Oilfield Environmental & Compliance, Inc.

2500772

WO & Reported:

Sample Method Summary

Laboratory & CertificationMethodAnalysis Matrix

Microbiological Parameters by APHA Standard Methods

SM 9223B OEC, InternalColiform, Total QT MPN 

SM9223B

Drinking Water

SM 9223B OEC, InternalE.coli QT MPN SM9223B Drinking Water

Notes and Definitions [TOC_1]Notes and Definitions[TOC]

DefinitionQualifier

MDL

Relative Percent DifferenceRPD

Analyte NOT DETECTED at or above the method limit (MDL)ND

Method Detection Limit

Reporting Limit  (Quantitation Limit)RL

MCL Analyte concentration is greater than or equal to the California Maximum Contaminant Limit.

TMP3 Temperature [Out-Acceptable] Direct from Field

The results in this report apply to the samples analyzed in accordance with the chain of custody document. This analytical report must be reproduced in its entirety.

Page 4 of 6

307 Roemer Way, Santa Maria, CA 93454

TEL: (805) 922-4772

FAX: (805) 925-3376www.oecusa.com

client.oec.com\reportsClient Connect:CA-ELAP 2438, TNI02666

Page 4 of 7



Jan-2025

Date Well: #1 
AUTO/OFF

Distance to SW 
(ft)

Well: #2 
AUTO/OFF

Distance to SW 
(ft)

1 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
2 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
3 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
4 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
5 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
6 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
7 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
8 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
9 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150

10 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
11 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
12 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
13 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
14 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
15 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
16 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
17 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
18 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
19 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
20 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
21 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
22 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
23 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
24 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
25 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
26 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
27 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
28 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
29 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
30 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150
31 OFF > 150 AUTO > 150

   Date:

Contact Phone: (805) 597-7100   /   Email: compliance@frm-ops.com

MONTHLY REPORT FOR GWUDI WELLS - DISTANCE TO SURFACE WATER

PWS NAME: San Simeon Community Services District PWS No.: 4000568
For the Month of:

Signed by: 02/07/2025Cara Aguiar, FRM Compliance Manager for SSCSD



MONTHLY SUMMARY OF MONITORING
FOR SURFACE WATER TREATMENT REGULATIONS

System Name: San Simeon CSD System Number: 4000568

Plant Name: San Simeon CSD Filter Project Month/Year: January-25

Treated water turbidities every four hours (NTU)1

Date

Peak 
Recycled 

Water 
Turbidity

Peak Raw 
Water 

Turbidity2

Peak Settled 
Water 

Turbidity

Midnight to 
4:00 am

4:00 am to 
8:00 am

8:00 am to 
noon

Noon to 
4:00 pm

4:00 pm to 
8:00 pm

8:00 pm to 
Midnight Average

Wed 1 - 0.1 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Thu 2 - 0.2 - 0.020 0.020 0.020 0.020 0.020

Fri 3 - 0.1 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Sat 4 - 0.2 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Sun 5 - 0.1 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Mon 6 - 0.5 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Tue 7 - 0.2 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Wed 8 - 0.1 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Thu 9 - 0.1 - 0.020 0.020 0.020 0.020

Fri 10 - 0.2 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Sat 11 - 0.1 - 0.020 0.020

Sun 12 - 0.1 - 0.020 0.020 0.020 0.020

Mon 13 - 0.1 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Tue 14 - 0.1 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Wed 15 - 0.1 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Thu 16 - 0.1 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Fri 17 - 0.3 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Sat 18 - 0.1 - 0.020 0.020

Sun 19 - 0.2 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Mon 20 - 0.2 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Tue 21 - 0.2 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Wed 22 - 0.3 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Thu 23 - 0.2 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Fri 24 - 0.2 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Sat 25 - 0.1 - 0.020 0.020 0.020 0.020

Sun 26 - 0.0 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Mon 27 - 0.1 - 0.020 0.020 0.020 0.020

Tue 28 - 0.2 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Wed 29 - 0.2 - 0.020 0.020

Thu 30 - 0.3 - 0.020 0.020 0.020

Fri 31 - 0.1 - 0.030 0.020 0.025

Avg. - 0.2 - 0.020 0.020 0.020 0.020 0.020 -
1 For continuous turbidity monitoring, a discrete turbidity value must be taken off the record chart at four hour intervals.
2 Raw water turbidity must be monitored after returned flow.
Note:  See Directions on reporting peak recycle, raw, and settled water turbidities.

Total Number of Samples: 65 Number of readings <= 0.3 NTU: 65
% Readings <= 0.3 NTU: 100.0% Average Effluent NTU: 0.020

Meets Standard (i.e. at least 95% of readings are <= 0.3 NTU) (Y/N)? Yes

Maximum discrete turbidity value: 0.030
Average percent reduction during the month = [(Average Raw NTU - Average Effluent NTU)/(Average Raw NTU)] x 100% = 88.0%

Meets Standard (i.e. Reduction is greater than 80%) (Y/N)? Yes

Percentile Results: 50 th = 0.020
xth Percentile NTU Value of all turbidity readings: 90 th = 0.020
(x% of all turbidity readings are less than these values) 95 th = 0.020

98 th = 0.020
99 th = 0.024

San Simeon SWTR Reporting Template
Updated 5/31/04 Page 1 of 3 Printed 2/6/2025



Combined Filter Effluent Reporting
Incidents of turbidity greater than 1 NTU for more than 1 hour.

Date of Incident

Value

Incidents of turbidity greater than 1.0 NTU for more than 8 consecutive hours while the plant is operating.

Date of Incident

Value

Were there any trigger violations?

Incidents of turbidity greater than 0.5 NTU in two consecutive measurements taken no more than 15 minutes apart at the end of
the first 60 minutes of continuous filter operation after the filter has been backwashed or ortherwise taken offline.

Date of Incident

Value

Filter Number

Indicate the date that the turbidimeters that are used for regulatory monitoring purposes were calibrated:

Date Which             
Turbidimeter

Which standards used, 
primary or secondary Date

N/A

N/A

N/A

Which                  
Turbidimeter

Which standards used, 
primary or secondary

NoYes

San Simeon SWTR Reporting Template
Updated 5/31/04 Page 2 of 3 Printed 2/6/2025



Disinfection Process Data

Disinfectant residual type (check one):

Incidents of chlorine residuals less than 0.2 ppm at the plant effluent:

Total number of incidents where residual is < 0.2 ppm: 0
Meet Standard (i.e. is not less than 0.2 ppm for more than four hours (Y/N)? Yes

Number of distribution system residual samples collected: 31
Number of distribution system samples for HPC only: 0
   Total number of residual and/or HPC samples collected: 31
Number of samples with no detectable residual and HPC is not measured: 0
Number of samples with no residual and HPC > 500 CFU/mL: 0
Number of samples for HPC only and HPC > 500 CFU/mL: 0
   Total number of samples with no residual and/or HPC > 500 CFU/mL: 0

Compute V: 
Where V = [1 - (Total No. of samples with no residual and/or HPC > 500)/(Total No. of residual and/or HPC samples collected)] x 100

V = 100.0%

Meets Standard (I.e. V >= 95%) (Y/N) ? Yes

SUMMARY OF WATER QUALITY COMPLAINTS
General Complaints:

Type of Complaint Corrective Actions Taken

Taste/Odor

Color

Turbidity

Suspended Solids

Other (Describe)

Reports of Gastrointestinal Illness (attach additional sheets if necessary):
Person Reporting

Attach an explanation of any failure of the performance standards or operating criteria and corrective action taken or planned.

Signature:

Date:

Date Dept. Notified

Number

0

Date Corrective Actions Taken

0

0

Date of Incident None.
Duration

0

0

Free Chlorine Combined Chlorine Other

San Simeon SWTR Reporting Template
Updated 5/31/04 Page 3 of 3 Printed 2/6/2025

02/07/2025

Cara Aguiar, FRM Compliance Manager for SSCSD



DDW - Santa Barbara District 
Monthly CT Calculation Report for Pipeline

Virus Inactivation by Free Chlorine

Input Parameters: (all fields shown in Red )
Water System Name & PWS No:
Facility Name: 
Month and Year :
Pipeline Diameter in Inches : 8.0 Inches
Pipe length in Feet : 320.0 feet
Volume in Pipe Contactor, (Gal) 1285.1 Gallons
Short-Circuiting Factor: 1.0 Plug Flow
Required Virus Log Inactivation: 4 log

Date
Max Flow 

(Peak Hour), 
gpm

Lowest 
Water 

Temp, oC

Max. 
pH

Lowest 
Chlorine 
Residual, 

mg/L

Required 
CT

Detention 
Time, 

minutes

Actual 
CT10

Inactivation 
Ratio 

(CTcalc/CT99.9)

Meets CT 
Req's

1 184 16.1 7.13 2.91 3.80 6.98 20.32 5.35 Yes
2 184 16.0 7.13 3.65 3.80 6.98 25.49 6.71 Yes
3 185 15.7 7.09 3.45 4.00 6.95 23.97 5.99 Yes
4 183 15.6 7.11 3.08 4.00 7.02 21.63 5.41 Yes
5 183 16.0 7.13 6.47 3.80 7.02 45.43 11.96 Yes
6 184 16.2 7.13 3.63 3.80 6.98 25.35 6.67 Yes
7 185 15.9 7.17 3.51 4.00 6.95 24.38 6.10 Yes
8 183 15.9 7.11 3.49 4.00 7.02 24.51 6.13 Yes
9 183 15.9 7.64 3.34 4.00 7.02 23.45 5.86 Yes

10 184 14.6 7.19 3.57 4.40 6.98 24.93 5.67 Yes
11 183 16.2 7.07 3.58 3.80 7.02 25.14 6.62 Yes
12 183 16.0 7.09 3.64 3.80 7.02 25.56 6.73 Yes
13 184 15.9 7.19 3.34 4.00 6.98 23.33 5.83 Yes
14 184 15.7 7.15 3.67 4.00 6.98 25.63 6.41 Yes
15 184 15.6 7.15 3.77 4.00 6.98 26.33 6.58 Yes
16 183 16.0 7.09 3.39 3.80 7.02 23.81 6.26 Yes
17 183 16.1 7.13 3.76 3.80 7.02 26.40 6.95 Yes
18 183 16.0 7.15 3.40 3.80 7.02 23.88 6.28 Yes
19 183 16.0 7.13 3.56 3.80 7.02 25.00 6.58 Yes
20 183 16.1 7.22 3.69 3.80 7.02 25.91 6.82 Yes
21 185 15.5 7.22 3.57 4.00 6.95 24.80 6.20 Yes
22 183 18.6 7.17 3.60 3.40 7.02 25.28 7.44 Yes
23 183 15.5 7.19 3.10 4.00 7.02 21.77 5.44 Yes
24 183 15.5 7.15 3.20 4.00 7.02 22.47 5.62 Yes
25 183 16.1 7.13 3.20 3.80 7.02 22.47 5.91 Yes
26 183 15.8 7.09 3.10 4.00 7.02 21.77 5.44 Yes
27 183 15.2 7.24 3.18 4.00 7.02 22.33 5.58 Yes
28 183 15.3 7.17 3.36 4.00 7.02 23.60 5.90 Yes
29 184 15.9 7.15 3.44 4.00 6.98 24.03 6.01 Yes
30 185 15.6 7.19 3.27 4.00 6.95 22.72 5.68 Yes
31 183 15.6 7.28 3.19 4.00 7.02 22.40 5.60 Yes
Min 183 14.6 7.1 2.91 3.40 6.95 20.32 5.35
Avg 184 15.9 7.2 3.52 3.92 7.00 24.65 6.31
Max 185 18.6 7.6 6.47 4.40 7.02 45.43 11.96

Date: Name & Signature:

San Simeon CSD 400568-010-010

Well CT Pipeline + Tank
January 2025

02/07/2025 Cara Aguiar



CT Compliance for 
Giardia Lamblia Cysts by Free Chlorine

Input Parameters:
Water System Name: San Simeon CSD
Number of Service Connections: 206
System Number: 4000568
Month and Year:
Clearwell(s) - Volume per Foot: 1,285 Gallons/Ft
Short-Circuiting Factor for Clearwell(s): 1.00 T10/T
Required Log Inactivation of Giardia Cyst: 0.5 Log

Clearwell Data CT Results Chlorine Species

Date Lowest 
Level, ft

Effective 
Volume, gal

Peak Hourly 
Flow Rate, gpm

Contact 
Time, 

minutes

Lowest 
Temperature, 

oC

Max. 
pH

Lowest 
Chlorine 

Residual, mg/L

Required 
CT

Calculated 
CT10

Inactivation 
Ratio 

(CTcalc/CT99.9)

Calculated 
Log 

Inactivation

Percent of 
HOCl in 
Water

Percent of 
OCl- in 
Water

Wed 1 1.0 1,285 184 7.0 16.1 7.1 2.91 17 20 0.20 0.6 75.8% 24.2%
Thu 2 1.0 1,285 184 7.0 16.0 7.1 3.65 18 25 0.24 0.7 75.9% 24.1%
Fri 3 1.0 1,285 185 6.9 15.7 7.1 3.45 18 24 0.22 0.7 77.7% 22.3%
Sat 4 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 15.6 7.1 3.08 18 22 0.20 0.6 76.9% 23.1%
Sun 5 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 16.0 7.1 6.47 18 45 0.43 1.3 75.9% 24.1%
Mon 6 1.0 1,285 184 7.0 16.2 7.1 3.63 17 25 0.24 0.7 75.8% 24.2%
Tue 7 1.0 1,285 185 6.9 15.9 7.2 3.51 18 24 0.23 0.7 74.2% 25.8%
Wed 8 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 15.9 7.1 3.49 18 25 0.23 0.7 76.8% 23.2%
Thu 9 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 15.9 7.6 3.34 22 23 0.18 0.5 49.4% 50.6%
Fri 10 1.0 1,285 184 7.0 14.6 7.2 3.57 19 25 0.22 0.6 73.9% 26.1%
Sat 11 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 16.2 7.1 3.58 17 25 0.24 0.7 78.2% 21.8%
Sun 12 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 16.0 7.1 3.64 18 26 0.24 0.7 77.5% 22.5%
Mon 13 1.0 1,285 184 7.0 15.9 7.2 3.34 18 23 0.22 0.7 73.3% 26.7%
Tue 14 1.0 1,285 184 7.0 15.7 7.2 3.67 18 26 0.24 0.7 75.2% 24.8%
Wed 15 1.0 1,285 184 7.0 15.6 7.2 3.77 18 26 0.24 0.7 75.2% 24.8%
Thu 16 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 16.0 7.1 3.39 18 24 0.23 0.7 77.5% 22.5%
Fri 17 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 16.1 7.1 3.76 18 26 0.25 0.8 75.8% 24.2%
Sat 18 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 16.0 7.2 3.40 18 24 0.23 0.7 75.0% 25.0%
Sun 19 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 16.0 7.1 3.56 18 25 0.24 0.7 75.9% 24.1%
Mon 20 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 16.1 7.2 3.69 18 26 0.25 0.7 71.9% 28.1%
Tue 21 1.0 1,285 185 6.9 15.5 7.2 3.57 18 25 0.23 0.7 72.1% 27.9%
Wed 22 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 18.6 7.2 3.60 15 25 0.28 0.8 73.0% 27.0%
Thu 23 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 15.5 7.2 3.10 18 22 0.20 0.6 73.5% 26.5%
Fri 24 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 15.5 7.2 3.20 18 22 0.21 0.6 75.3% 24.7%
Sat 25 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 16.1 7.1 3.20 18 22 0.21 0.6 75.8% 24.2%
Sun 26 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 15.8 7.1 3.10 18 22 0.20 0.6 77.6% 22.4%
Mon 27 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 15.2 7.2 3.18 18 22 0.20 0.6 71.4% 28.6%
Tue 28 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 15.3 7.2 3.36 18 24 0.22 0.6 74.5% 25.5%
Wed 29 1.0 1,285 184 7.0 15.9 7.2 3.44 18 24 0.23 0.7 75.1% 24.9%
Thu 30 1.0 1,285 185 6.9 15.6 7.2 3.27 18 23 0.21 0.6 73.5% 26.5%
Fri 31 1.0 1,285 183 7.0 15.6 7.3 3.19 18 22 0.21 0.6 69.2% 30.8%

Average: 0.23 0.69

January-25

San Simeon SWTR Reporting Template
Updated 10/20/01 CT Compliance Printed 2/6/2025



San Simeon SWTR Reporting Template GiardiaGraph Printed 2/6/2025

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Lo
g 

G
ia

rd
ia

 In
ac

tiv
at

io
n

Day

Log Giardia Inactivation for Chlorine Disinfection

January-25

0.69Average Log Giardia 

San Simeon CSD



San Simeon SWTR Reporting Template NTUGraph Printed 2/6/2025

0.00

0.02

0.04

0.06

0.08

0.10

0.12

0.14

0.16

0.18

0.20

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Tu
rb

id
ity

, N
TU

Day

Finished Water Turbidity

January-25

San Simeon CSD



San Simeon SWTR Reporting Template NTUDistGraph Printed 2/6/2025

0.00

0.02

0.04

0.06

0.08

0.10

0.12

0.14

0.16

0.18

0.20

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 100

Fi
ni

sh
ed

 W
at

er
 T

ur
bi

di
ty

, N
TU

Percent of time finished water turbidity values <= x

Probability Distribution of Finished Water Turbidity Data

January-25

San Simeon CSD

50th =

90th = 

95th = 

98th = 

99th = 

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.02



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

Min
Mean
Max

Chloride 
(mg/L) TDS (mg/L) Iron (mg/L)

Reverse Osmosis unit not in operation during monitoring period. 

Reverse Osmosis unit not in operation during 
monitoring period. 

Reverse Osmosis unit not in operation during monitoring period. 

Weekly & Monthly RO Effluent Monitoring

Date
Specific 

Conductance 
(umhos/cm)

Chloride 
(mg/L) TDS (mg/L) Iron (mg/L) Aggressive 

Index (units)
Langelier 

Index (units)

San Simeon CSD
System Number 4000568

Reverse Osmosis Treatment System Monthly Summary Report
Month: January 2025

Daily Monitoring Monthly & Quarterly Well Monitoring

DATE
Well 1 

Production 
(Gallons)

Well 2 
Production 
(Gallons)

RO Influent 
Flow 

(Gallons)

RO Effluent 
Flow 

(Gallons) Date

Well 1 Well #2

Specific 
Conductance 
(umhos/cm)

Chloride 
(mg/L) TDS (mg/L) Iron (mg/L)

Specific 
Conductance 
(umhos/cm)



 

 

 

 

SSCSD.          Interim GM Report 2/20/25 

 
During the last two months, I have been reviewing several major projects with our contractors.   
I'll review them with you here. 
 
Pipe Bridge logjam. With the recent rain there has been no effect on the logjam.   
 
Pipe Bridge.  I asked Micah Rose of the welding company that previously repaired the pipe 
bridge to come provide us an annual inspection.  He found about $8000.00 of work that could 
be done that would give the bridge another 10 years of life.  I have approved this work to be 
completed. He started last week and will return next week to continue 
 
Pico Stairway. Last week, I spoke with Ellie Oliver, Enforcement Officer of the California Coastal 
Commission, after she sent a letter from her office stating, "Our staff counsel agrees with your 
interpretation of Prop 128 Article XIII D, Section 6(b)(2) that the purposes here (to repair the Pico stairs) 
are not likely to fall under your general funds." Thus, we are now "off the hook" for the repair of the 
stairway. I told her that I believed the best choice for the stairway was for the Mouchewar Trust to 
dedicate the land to State Parks.   
 
Water meters.  FRM and I have identified the worst water meters that need replacing.  You are 
voting on replacing the meters on that list tonight. 
 
Stillwater Science Pico Creek Instream update report. The report was completed last week and 
has been sent to the County and posted on our website.  The report basically suggests that we 
should only be pumping from the deeper Well #2, because there are many concerns with the 
shallow Well #1.  This would have a longer-term effect, and I quote" 
Comparing the groundwater sustainable yields of 112 AFY and projected water demands of 112.2 AFY 

by 2045, the water supply from the Pico Creek Valley Groundwater Basin is 0.2 AFY deficient to serve 

the estimated system-wide demand under normal water year conditions. 

Additionally, in a single dry year or consecutive dry years, the projected demand is expected to exceed 

the system supply in the 25-year window assessed (2020 to 2045). In normal water years, the 0.2-AFY 

supply deficiency may be resolved by implementing permanent water conservation actions, but in dry 

years, the District will likely be required to implement water conservation actions and procedures, such as 

declaring drought and calling for short-term water use reductions to address potential water shortages. 
 
Outfall pillow upgrade.  I spoke with the outfall contractors, JR Brennan and Padre Assoc.  The 
outfall needs to be checked, but they would not be able to do so until late Spring or Summer.  
The Permits are good for a couple more years, so no problem with waiting. 
 
AT&T upgrade.  AT&T is doing a fiber upgrade for our phone system in the office. This will cut 
our monthly bill in half (from $1500.00 to $800.00) plus eliminate our need for an internet 
connection to San Simeon Cable Internet (savings of $52.50/month). 
 
Last week, we had the California Rural Water Association come do a system-wide leak 
detection over two days.  I haven't received their report yet but before the agent left he said he 
did not find any pipe leaks but did agree that we had some meters that needed replacing. 



 

4913-2966-0687, v. 2 

MINUTES 
SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
1350 MAIN STREET 
CAMBRIA, CA 93428 

Thursday, December 5, 2024 
6:00 p.m. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER   
 

The Special Meeting of the San Simeon Community Service District Council was called 
to order at 6:04 p.m. by Chair Le. 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
Present:  Chair Holly Le, Director Jacqueline Diamond, Director Karina Tiwana, 
Director Donahue, 
 
Absent: None 
 
Staff Present:  Patrick Faverty, Ed.D., Interim General Manager  
    Nubia Goldstein, District Counsel, White Brenner LLP 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
The Pledge of Allegiance was held at 6:05 p.m. 
 
4.  PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

- None 
 
5. NON-DISTRICT REPORTS (6:06 p.m. – 6:08 p.m.): 

A. Sheriff’s Report – Stated a report summary from the month of November  
PUBLIC COMMENT FOR THIS ITEM 

- None  
6. DISTRICT STAFF & COMMITTEE REPORTS (6:08 p.m. – 6:26 p.m.): 

 
Public comments at the conclusion of District staff and committee reports are 
limited to three (3) minutes per person per item. 
 

A. STAFF REPORTS:  



 

4913-2966-0687, v. 2 

vi. FRM Operations Report – Stated a Summary of November Activities. 
 
Director Donahue inquired if the representative from FRM could provide the 
Board with a status report on meter replacements. 
 
The FRM representative stated they have been in discussions with the interim 
general manager regarding which meters need to be replaced and are awaiting a 
response from the meter vendor to finalize the number of meters to be replaced. 
 
Director Donahue requested clarification regarding the replacement of 
commercial and residential meters. 
 
Interim General Manager explained that the priority for replacement is 
commercial meter readers. The finalized cost will be determined to replace the 
high-priority meters. 
 
San Simeon resident raised a question about the age of the meter at the cost 
drivers' property and expressed concern that the age of the meter is not known. 
 
Interim General Manager clarified that the issue is being triaged, with the 
replacement of high-priority meters focused on commercial properties, where 
approximately a dozen meters are currently non-functional. 
 

vii. Interim General Manager’s Report – Stated a Summary of November Activities 
 
Director Tiwana expressed concern about a fallen streetlight and asked if it could 
be moved or secured until it is repaired. 
 
Director Donahue inquired if one of the streetlights currently out is located near 
the Pico stairway. 
 
Interim General Manager stated that he was not aware of the additional outage 
near the Pico stairway but would make a note of it. 
 
Director Tiwana noted that although PG&E has capped off electricity access to 
the fallen streetlight, it still poses a hazard. She further expressed concern that 
the orange cone placed atop the streetlight as a cautionary measure is 
insufficient to adequately signal the hazard. 
 
Director Diamond asked when the last report of the light outage was submitted to 
PG&E and inquired about the estimated turnaround time for repairs. 
 
Interim General Manager stated that the notice regarding the lamppost outages 
was reported to PG&E last week. He did not have an estimated turnaround time 



 

4913-2966-0687, v. 2 

but assured the Board that he would prioritize contacting PG&E to expedite 
repairs. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
-  San Simeon Citizen expressed concern about poor sidewalk 

conditions and lack of lighting near Castillo, noting potential liability if 
someone were to slip and fall. The citizen urged prioritizing the repair 
of the streetlights. 

  
viii. District Financial Summary – Stated a Summary of November Financials. 

 
Interim General Manager noted that the financial summaries are attached to the 
agenda packet and extended appreciation to Director Donahue for advocating for 
the CLASS account for the district. 
 
Director Diamond pointed out that the cash disbursements journal is missing 
from the agenda packet. 
 

   PUBLIC COMMENT 
- Hank Kruzick commented in response to the general manager’s report, 

stating his belief that the Castillo lighting is county-owned and should 
therefore be the county’s responsibility. 

 
Interim General Manager stated that the responsibility for the upkeep of the 
Castillo lighting falls on the district. 
 

ix. District Counsel’s Report – Stated a Summary of November Activities.  
x. Reorganization Committee Report- Stated a Summary of November’s 

Activities 
 
Interim General Manager stated that the meeting could be changed to 
accommodate for the County’s Reorganization Board Meeting 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR THIS ITEM 
- None  

 

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (6:26 p.m. – 6:29 p.m.) 
 



 

4913-2966-0687, v. 2 

Director Diamond motioned to pull Item B from the agenda due to the lack of supporting 
documentation and move it to the next scheduled meeting. The motion also included 
approving Items A, C, and D. Director Le seconded the motion. 

 
Vote was taken as follows: 

 
AYES: Le, Diamond, Tiwana, Donahue 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

 
  PUBLIC COMMENT FOR THIS ITEM 

- Steve Orellana commented a question if the disbursement 
journals will be approved even if it’s not on the packet 

 
 

A. Review and Approval of Minutes for the Meeting on November 07, 2024  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR THIS ITEM 
- None  

 
Director Diamond pulled the item for discussion and correction. The minutes to be 
corrected for item 7A. iii- the District Financial Summary to reflect correct the Interim 
General Managers response to state that Adam Geis is the CPA from Moss, Levy & 
Hartzheim LLP that the district used for the 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 FY audit. 
 
Director Diamond made a motion to correct the Minutes from October 3, 2024, with 
the stated corrections to reflect the accounting firm and approve the Minutes for the 
October 03, 2024, Meeting. Director Donahue seconded the motion. 
 

Vote was taken as follows: 
 

AYES: Le, Diamond, Tiwana, Donahue 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
 

B. Review and approval of November Disbursements Journal  
 

C. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE JULY - OCTOBER P/L   
 



 

4913-2966-0687, v. 2 

D. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER BALANCE SHEET 
  

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR THIS ITEM 
- None  

 

8. BUSINESS ACTION ITEMS (6:29 p.m. - 6:40 p.m.): 
 

A. Discussion of the Interim General Manager’s Administrative Reset Proposal 
 
Director Tiwana asked District Counsel to elaborate on how items intended for 
closed session should be properly handled. 
 
Chair Le clarified that at a previous meeting, she had suggested, and the board 
had voted to pull the item from the consent calendar, requesting it be placed in 
closed session for this meeting. However, she was led to believe that an item 
must be listed as a business action item in order for the meeting to proceed with 
that item. 
 
District Counsel explained that at the last meeting, the Chair had pulled the item 
for discussion at the next meeting for closed session. Staff will ensure this 
process is followed at the next meeting. However, for tonight, there are two 
options: 1) Hear the staff report prepared by the Interim General Manager, with 
Counsel’s recommendation to continue the discussion and take no action tonight, 
or 2) The board can choose to continue the item entirely. 
 
Chair Le stated that she would like the Interim General Manager to present his 
staff report today and for the discussion to continue in closed session. 
 
Interim General Manager read his prepared staff report. 
 

 PUBLIC COMMENT FOR THIS ITEM 
- Steve Orellana expressed concern with the Interim General Manager’s 

proposal, citing several inconsistencies. He pointed out the inclusion of 
Kathy East in the proposal, despite the district paying her directly. He 
also questioned the request for $15,000 per month, which totals 
$180,000 annually—more than what Cambria pays their General 
Manager. Additionally, he raised concerns about the proposed 
insurance and call allowance, emphasizing that it is concerning to see 
such a request when no visible projects have been completed. 



 

4913-2966-0687, v. 2 

 
9. BOARD COMMENTS: 

- None 
 
 

10.  CONSIDERATION FOR SCHEDULING THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING ON 
JANUARY 02, 2025. 
  

Chair Le suggested that a motion be made to skip the first meeting of the year, 
scheduled for January 2, 2025, due to it being customary to do so because of the 
holidays. 
 
Director Tiwana agreed, stating that this is a customary practice. 
 
Director Diamond expressed concern about the large gap in time until the following 
meeting. 
 
Director Diamond made a motion to keep the January 2, 2025, meeting. Director 
Donahue seconded the motion. 

 
Vote was taken as follows: 
 
AYES: Diamond, Donahue 
NOES: Le, Tiwana 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

 
Director Tiwana made a motion to schedule the next regular board meeting for 
February 6, 2025. Chair Le seconded the motion. 
 
Director Diamond inquired whether it would be possible to hold a special meeting after 
the County’s meeting. 
 
Director Tiwana asked the Interim General Manager if the Board Room would be 
available at that time. 
 
Interim General Manager stated that he did not know. 
 

Vote was taken as follows: 
 

AYES: Le, Diamond, Tiwana, Donahue 



 

4913-2966-0687, v. 2 

NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
 

 
10.  ADJOURNMENT (6:41 p.m.): 

 
The Regular Meeting of the San Simeon Community Service District adjourned at 6:41 
p.m. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





















  Agenda Item 8 A:   23-24 Audit        











































 

 Page 1 of 3 
 
4911-4935-8614, v. 1 

 
 

BUSINESS ACTION ITEM STAFF REPORT 
 

 

 

ITEM 8 B. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 25-477. DISCUSS, REVIEW, AND 
ADOPT A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING STAFF TO PREPARE AND DELIVER A 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING PROPOSED WATER, 
WASTEWATER, AND SERVICE RATE INCREASES 
 
Summary: 
 
The San Simeon Community Services District (“District”) provides water and wastewater 
services to District residents and businesses. The fees paid by the District’s customers 
have not increased since 2022 and are insufficient to cover the cost of the services. 
 
The District adopted Ordinance No. 121 in 2019 to authorize an increase in water, 
wastewater, and service rates for five years beginning with the 2019-2020 fiscal year. The 
Ordinance authorized a 5.8% increase for the 2019-2020 fiscal year and CPI (Consumer 
Price Index) + 3% increases each year for the following four fiscal years. Although the 
District was authorized to implement a CPI + 3% increase for the 2023-2024 fiscal year, 
the District only implemented the authorized increases through the 2022-2023 fiscal year. 
The District has not implemented a rate increase since 2022 despite rising costs and the 
District’s inability to cover the cost of services under the current rates.  
 
The District proposes a 12% rate increase, which corresponds to a CPI increase for the 
years since the rates were last increased in 2022. The proposed increase is directly 
related to increased operating expenses, and the proposed increase raises rates  to cover 
increased operating costs. The District has compared the proposed rates with the cost of 
providing water and wastewater services, and the District has determined that a 12% rate 
increase would not exceed the cost of providing water and wastewater services to District 
customers.  
 
Proposition 218 established substantive and procedural requirements for a public agency 
increasing property-related fees and charges. A “fee” under Proposition 218 means “any 
levy other than an ad valorem tax, a special tax, or an assessment, imposed by an agency 
upon a parcel or upon a person as an incident of property ownership, including a user fee 
or charge for a property related service.”1 Proposition 218’s requirements apply to fees 
charged by a local government to provide water services, and voter approval is not 

 
1 Cal. Const., art. 13D, § 2. 



 

 Page 2 of 3 
 
4911-4935-8614, v. 1 

required for increased water service fees.2 
 
Property-related fees must comply with the following substantive provisions of Proposition 
218:  
 

1. Revenues derived from the fee must not exceed the funds required to 
provide the property-related service;  
 
2. Revenues derived from the fee must not be used for any purpose other 
than that for which the fee is imposed;  
 
3. The amount of a fee imposed upon any parcel or person as an incident 
of property ownership must not exceed the proportional cost of the service 
attributable to the parcel;  
 
4. The fee may not be imposed for a service unless the service is actually 
used by, or immediately available to, the owner of the property subject to 
the fee; 
 
 5. No fee or charge may be imposed for general governmental services, 
such as police, fire, ambulance, or libraries, where the service is available 
to the public in substantially the same manner as it is to property owners. 

 
To begin the Proposition 218 process, the District must first provide notice of the proposed 
increase to the affected customers by mail. The notice must state the amount of the fee 
to be imposed; the basis upon which the fees were calculated; a statement regarding the 
reason for the increase; and the date, time and location of the public hearing where the 
Board will consider the increase. The notice must be sent, in this case, to the customers 
of record. Pursuant to Government Code section 53755, the notice may be given by 
including it in the District’s regular billing statement. The proposed resolution authorizes 
the District to prepare and deliver the required Proposition 218 notice of proposed increase 
to District customers.  
 
Board Actions:  
 
1. The Board may approve the Resolution Authorizing Staff to Prepare and Deliver a 
Notice of Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Water, Wastewater, and Service Rate 
Increases;  
 
2. The Board may approve the Resolution Authorizing Staff to Prepare and Deliver a 
Notice of Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Water, Wastewater, and Service Rate 
Increases, subject to any changes as directed by the Board; or 
 
3. The Board may reject the Resolution Authorizing Staff to Prepare and Deliver a Notice 

 
2 Cal. Const., art. 13D, § 6(c). 
 



 

 Page 3 of 3 
 
4911-4935-8614, v. 1 

of Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Water, Wastewater, and Service Rate Increase in 
its entirety. 
 
Attachments:  
 
1. Resolution 25-477. 
2. Notice of Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Water, Wastewater, and Service Rate 

Increases 
3. Interim General Manager Recommended rate increase 
 



 

 4917-1768-6806, v. 1

RESOLUTION NO. 25-477 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN SIMEON 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AUTHORIZING STAFF TO PREPARE AND 
DELIVER A NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING PROPOSED WATER, 

WASTEWATER, AND SERVICE RATE INCREASES 

 
WHEREAS, the San Simeon Community Services District (“District”) provides 

water and wastewater services to residents and businesses of the District; and  
 

WHEREAS, the water, wastewater, and service fees are insufficient to cover the 
cost of providing services; and  

 
WHEREAS, a 12% rate increase would not exceed the funds required to provide 

water and wastewater services to District customers; and   
 
WHEREAS, the District must comply with the substantive and procedural 

requirements of Proposition 218 when increasing water, wastewater, and service fees; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the District must deliver notice of the proposed fee increase to 
customers of record; and 

 
WHEREAS, customers receiving the notice will be provided an opportunity to 

protest the increase, and if a majority protest is received, state law prohibits the District 
from implementing the proposed rate increase. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT that District staff is authorized to 
prepare and send notice of a public hearing, pursuant to Proposition 218, to consider 
increasing water, wastewater, and service rates by 12%. 
 
 ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT on ____, 2025, by the following roll call votes: 
 
AYES: 
NOES:  
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINED:  

 
      _______________________________ 

Chairperson, Board of Directors of the 
San Simeon Community Services District 
 
 



 

 4917-1768-6806, v. 1

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Patrick Faverty, Ed.D., Interim General Manager  
San Simeon Community Services District 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
District Legal Counsel, Nubia I. Goldstein 

 



The Board has the choice to raise rates as they see fit, as Interim GM, I’m 
recommending a single rate increase of 12% based on the CPI, which is allowed under 
Prop 218.  The Board can decree to lower the proposal % or recommend offering a 
contract for a rate study.   
 
A rate study typically includes rate increases for up to five years to warrant the cost of 
the study.  An annual rate increase typically uses the CPI plus 3%. CPI over the last 
three years has been 9% in ’22, 6% in ’23, and 3.3% in ’24. A further rate study would 
take time and money and would be public. 
 
Here are my figures for the need for the 12% rate increase 
 
Please note in the 23-24 audit, net operating losses of ($141,299.00) for wastewater, 
($275,393.00) for water, and General fund of (141,104.99). 
 
Current fees:  wastewater = $17.77 / 100 cf of water used  
    (12% increase of $2.13 for $19.90 / 100 cf of water used ) 
         water          = $14.55 / 100 cf of water used (12% increase = $16.30) 
    (12% increase of $1.75 for $16.30 / 100 cf of water used ) 
         service fee  = $40.72.  (12% increase of $4.89 for total $45.60)  
 
Thus one unit of 100 cf water and wastewater is currently $32.32 plus fees, $40.72. 
A 12% increase/one unit of 100 cf water/waste used would be $36.20 plus $45.60           
 
Water and wastewater a monthly 12% total increase (w & ww) would be $3.88,  
Fee increase = $4.88 
 
Based on 2023 - 2024 audit total wastewater income was $499,165. A 12% increase 
would be $59,900.   
 
2023-2024 Water income was $447,407. A 12% increase would be $53,689.   
 
2023-2024 fees were $105,517. A fee increase of 12% would represent $118,179. 
   
The approximate annual increase of12%= $231,768.00 would not approach covering 
the current district operating costs. 
 
 



AB 2257 incorporates the lessons from Plantier and other related cases by
establishing an independent administrative remedy that must be exhausted prior to
any Proposition 218 litigation. AB 2257 is optional, but its protections only extend to
special districts that choose to meet its specified requirements and procedures,
which are summarized below:

The special district must make the proposed rates available at least 45 days
prior to the deadline for a property owner to submit objections, and provide
notice of the administrative remedy procedure in the public hearing notice.
The special district must post evidence supporting the rates on the agency's
website, and mail it to a property owner upon request.
The special district must provide property owners with a minimum of 45 days
in which to submit a written objection alleging noncompliance with

•

Proposition 218;
The special district must respond in writing to each written objection prior to
the close of the public hearing during which the agency considers adopting the
fee or assessment in question.

Ifa special district complies with the requirements ofAB2257,a ratepayer may only
bring litigation after timely submission of a written objection. Further, AB2257 limits
any litigation to the administrative record of the proceedings, which avoids costly
discovery and the addition of extra-record evidence.

AB 2192 (Carrillo). , which takes effect January 1, 2025, increases the bidding
thresholds for public agencies that have opted into the California Uniform Public
Construction Cost Accounting Act (CUPCCAA)on "Public Projects" as defined in the
Act. AB 2192 also expands the scope of reviews by the California Uniform
Construction Cost Accounting Commission(CUCCAC)which performs certain duties
relating to administration and compliance with the Act.

CUPCCAAwas enacted in 1983 and codified in Public Contract Code Section 22000 et
seq. The Act provides public agencies with an alternative bidding process on capital
projects to those provided for in the enabling legislation for the agency. Participation
in the Act is completely voluntary, and agencies can opt into the Act relatively easily
by adoption of a resolution and an informal bidding ordinance. The resolution then
needs to be filed with the State Controller's Office. A sample ordinance and other



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 
CENTRAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
Christopher Lopez Director  

 

   
 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL #1881 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 
January 3, 2025 

 
The County of San Luis Obispo (County) is currently soliciting proposals for professional services 
to conduct a comprehensive analysis identifying the entirety of the San Simeon Community 
Services District’s (SSCSD)’s current challenges, regulatory issues and future obligations, potential 
benefits, potential impacts to its rate payers, etc. The analysis shall include an evaluation of the 
formation of a County Service Area, as well as all other available options that takes over the SSCSD.  
It is important for the community of San Simeon to have a complete picture of these options and 
associated costs. 
 
Each proposal shall specify each and every item as set forth in the attached specifications.  Any 
and all exceptions must be clearly stated in the proposal.  Failure to set forth any item in the 
specifications without taking exception may be grounds for rejection.  The County reserves the 
right to reject any and all proposals and to waive any irregularity or informality in any proposal or 
in the RFP process, as long as, in the judgment of the County, such action will not negate fair 
competition and will permit proper comparative evaluation of the proposals submitted. 
 
This RFP is posted on the County’s Purchasing website at 
http://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Central-Services/Purchasing-Services/Services/Bid-
RFP-Opportunities.aspx. Any changes, additions, or deletions to this RFP will be in the form of 
written addenda issued by the County.  Any addenda will be posted on the website.  Prospective 
proposers must check the website for addenda or other relevant new information during the 
response period.  The County is not responsible for the failure of any prospective proposer to 
receive such addenda. All addenda so issued shall become a part of this RFP. 
 
If you or your firm is interested and qualified, please submit one (1) electronic copy of your 
proposal, in Adobe Acrobat Portable Data Format (pdf), through the County’s Purchasing website 
at the address listed above, by 3:00 p.m. on February 11, 2025. 
 
If you have any questions about the proposal process, please contact the Buyer directly.   
 
 
Taylor Mejia 
Senior Buyer – Central Services Purchasing 
tmejia@co.slo.ca.us 

  

http://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Central-Services/Purchasing-Services/Services/Bid-RFP-Opportunities.aspx
http://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Central-Services/Purchasing-Services/Services/Bid-RFP-Opportunities.aspx
mailto:tmejia@co.slo.ca.us


County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 2 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

Table of Contents 
I. INTRODUCTION ..............................................................................................3 

A. PURPOSE ............................................................................................................................................... 3 
B. BACKGROUND ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

II. SCHEDULE AND SUBMITTAL ............................................................................4 

A. RFP SCHEDULE .................................................................................................................................... 4 
B. QUESTIONS ........................................................................................................................................... 5 
C. PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL ....................................................................................................................... 5 

III. GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS ................................................................................5 

A. COUNTY RIGHTS & OPTIONS .............................................................................................................. 5 
B. CHANGES TO THE RFP ........................................................................................................................ 8 
C. COMMUNICATIONS............................................................................................................................... 9 
D. INSURANCE ........................................................................................................................................... 9 
E. EXCEPTIONS & DEVIATIONS ............................................................................................................. 10 
F. AWARD AND STANDARD AGREEMENT ........................................................................................... 10 

IV. PROPOSAL FORMAT ...................................................................................... 11 

V. PROPOSAL SELECTION & CONTRACT AWARD ................................................ 12 

A. SELECTION PROCEDURES ............................................................................................................... 12 
B. SELECTION CRITERIA ........................................................................................................................ 13 
C. FINAL SELECTION............................................................................................................................... 13 
D. CONTRACT AWARD AND EXECUTION ............................................................................................. 13 
E. PROTEST OF AWARD ......................................................................................................................... 15 

VI. DEFINITIONS ................................................................................................. 16 

APPENDIX A – SCOPE OF SERVICES ......................................................................... 18 

APPENDIX B – SAMPLE CONTRACT ......................................................................... 24 

APPENDIX C – LOCAL VENDOR PREFERENCE........................................................... 25 

APPENDIX D – RISK ASSESSMENT QUESTIONNAIRE ................................................ 26 

APPENDIX E – COUNTY TRAVEL POLICY .................................................................. 29 

APPENDIX F – PROPOSER CHECKLIST ...................................................................... 30 

 
 
 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 3 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 

A. PURPOSE  
The purpose of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to solicit offers from firms specializing in 
governmental services to conduct a comprehensive analysis identifying the entirety of the 
San Simeon Community Services District’s (SSCSD)’s current challenges, regulatory issues 
and future obligations, potential benefits, potential impacts to its rate payers, and any other 
potential areas of focus as proposed to the County. The analysis shall include an evaluation 
of the formation of a County Service Area, as well as all other available options that takes 
over the SSCSD.  It is important for the community of San Simeon to have a complete 
picture of these options and associated costs.  

B. BACKGROUND   
The San Simeon Community Services District (“SSCSD”), formed in 1961, provides water, 
sewer, road maintenance, street lighting, and weed abatement to approximately four 
hundred (400) residents and transient visitors. The SSCSD has had ongoing challenges in 
providing these services as a consequence of staffing and administrative difficulties.  
 
The SSCSD Board of Directors approved a Resolution of Application for Dissolution on May 
2, 2024. The SSCSD submitted the dissolution application to the San Luis Obispo Local 
Agency Formation Commission (“LAFCO”) on May 16, 2024. LAFCO received an application 
for the proposed dissolution from the SSCSD in three parts on May 24, May 28, and May 
30, 2024. LAFCO staff completed an initial 30-day review of the application submittal and 
found that the application was incomplete and not sufficient for filing. The application 
remains on hold until several items requested by LAFCO are submitted with the application. 
Once all the items requested have been submitted and the application is deemed complete, 
then a Certificate of Filing will be issued with a specified LAFCO hearing date. 
 
As part of LAFCO’s formal 30-day review of the application, a letter dated June 26, 2024 from 
LAFCO, requested and outlined a list of items for the SSCSD to submit with its application 
(June 26, 2024 LAFCO Letter - Attachment One). A summary of those items requested are 
as follows: 
 
1. A comprehensive analysis of existing and future governance structures and services 
to be provided. An analysis should be comprehensive that encompasses the entirety of 
current challenges, regulatory issues and future obligations, potential benefits, reduced 
costs, etc. that must be considered by all agencies impacted to make a fully informed 
decision when considering the dissolution. 
2. LAFCO will need clarification of whether the dissolution will include the formation of 
a County Service Area (CSA).  If the County wishes to pursue the formation of a CSA 
concurrently with the proposed dissolution, then the SSCSD would need to be modify their 
application to LAFCO to include both the dissolution of SSCSD and the formation of a CSA. 
In this case, the proposal would be considered a reorganization as defined in Government 
Code Section 56073. SSCSD and the County would need to provide LAFCO with a revised 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 4 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

Resolution of Application that includes, but is not limited to, a revised resolution from each 
applicable Board, Plan for Services, and a map and legal description of the proposed CSA.  
3. Depending on the outcome of the dissolution application and whether this 
ultimately becomes a reorganization, the Plan for Services document will need to be 
updated accordingly. The costs, assets, liabilities, etc. that would be transferred/born to the 
County will need to be identified, and future rates to the existing community will need to 
be projected. If a CSA is proposed, analysis related to costs, time and staffing will need to 
be projected.  
4. The SSCSD had a legacy “Outside User Agreement” of 50 years with State Parks. This 
agreement has since expired. SSCSD’s proposal states that the service area being 
transferred to the County would only consist of the existing CSD boundary. Clarification is 
needed as to how State Parks would continue to obtain service, as they are an existing 
customer of SSCSD. If a CSA is formed, the affected State Parks area currently served by 
SSCSD would need to be included in its boundary. Due to regulatory changes, an outside 
user agreement would no longer be a feasible option, so any future boundary change or 
formation will need to address this issue.  
5. A Property Tax Agreement will need to be approved by resolution by the Board of 
Supervisors to transfer property tax revenues and annual tax increment from SSCSD. Once 
details are identified and resolved, the appropriate path for the tax exchange process will 
be identified. 
6. As this process moves forward early coordination and community involvement is 
highly recommended. If LAFCO approves the dissolution, a protest period would follow as 
required under Government Code Section 57092. SSCSD registered voters and landowners 
will have an opportunity to protest any action of LAFCO, and if certain thresholds are met, 
it could affect the overall outcome. If at least 25% of landowners who own at least 25% of 
assessed value within SSCSD protest during the protest proceedings OR if at least 25% of 
registered voters file a protest during protest proceedings, then the item goes to an 
election. If LAFCO receives 50% or more protests from the registered voters residing in 
SSCSD, then the action shall be terminated pursuant to Government Code Section 57078, 
without an election. 
7. The proposed dissolution will require discretionary action of the LAFCO 
Commission. As such, the proposed dissolution is subject to environmental review under 
the California Environmental Quality Act. Based on the status of the proposed dissolution 
at this time it is not possible to make an environmental determination. Once sufficient 
details of the proposed dissolution are known, LAFCO will be able to make a determination 
as to how the California Environmental Quality Act will be complied with. 

 
 
 

II. SCHEDULE AND SUBMITTAL 
 

A. RFP SCHEDULE  
The following represents the tentative schedule for this RFP.   Any change in the scheduled 
dates for the Deadline for Final Questions, Proposal Submission Deadline, and/or 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 5 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

Interviews (if needed) will be advertised in the form of an addendum to this RFP.  The 
schedule for other milestones dates may be adjusted without notice. 

 

RFP Schedule Date 
Issued January 3, 2025 
Deadline for Questions January 29, 2025 
Proposal Submission Date February 11, 2025 
Evaluation of Proposals February-March 2025 
Interviews (if needed) March 2025 
Contract Negotiations March-April 2025 
Intent to Award Issued April 2025 
Award by Board of Supervisors April 2025 
Notice to Proceed 1 day from award by BOS 

 

B. QUESTIONS 
All questions (requests for interpretations or corrections) pertaining to the content of this 
RFP must be made in writing through the County’s Purchasing website by 3:00 p.m. on 
January 29, 2025. Requests submitted after said date may not be considered.  Questions 
will receive a response within five (5) business days. Questions and responses will be posted 
(anonymously) on the Purchasing website and can be viewed by accessing the RFP.  The 
County reserves the right to determine the appropriateness of comments/questions that 
will be posted on the website. 

C. PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL 
If you or your firm is interested and qualified, please submit one (1) electronic copy of your 
proposal, in Adobe Acrobat Portable Data Format (pdf), through the County’s Purchasing 
website at the address listed on the title page by 3:00 p.m. on February 11, 2025. 

 
 

III. GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS 
 

A. COUNTY RIGHTS & OPTIONS 
1. All proposals must be submitted to the County’s Purchasing website in Adobe PDF 

format no later than 3:00 p.m. on February 11, 2025.  Late proposals will not be 
considered. 

2. The County reserves the right to request any missing information in a proposal 
submitted in response to this RFP. Proposer shall have 24 hours to provide the 
information to the requesting Buyer.  

3. All costs incurred in the preparation and submission of proposals and related 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 6 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

documentation will be borne solely by the proposer.  

4. This RFP does not constitute an offer of employment or to contract for services. 

5. The County may, in its sole and absolute discretion, accept or reject any and all 
proposals, in whole or in part, with or without cause, in response to this RFP and to 
make more than one award, or no award, or postpone or cancel, at any time, this RFP 
process, as which the County determines to be in its best interests.  

6. The County reserves the right to remedy technical errors, modify the published scope 
of services and approve or disapprove the use of all sub-consultants.   

7. The issuance of this RFP does not constitute an agreement by the County that any 
subsequent selection process will occur, or that any contract will be entered into by the 
County.  Proposals and other materials will not be returned. 

8. The County has the right to use any or all ideas or concepts presented in any proposal 
or interview without restriction, without conversation to all applicants.   

9. All documents submitted to the County in response to this RFP will become the 
exclusive property of the County. 

10. All proposals shall remain firm for NINETY (90) days following closing date for receipt of 
proposals. 

11. The County reserves the right to award the contract to the firms who present the 
proposal which, in the judgment of the County, best accomplishes the desired results.  

12. The term of the contract will be approximately SIX (6) months from date of award. 
Pricing will remain unchanged throughout the term of contract.  

13. Any contract awarded pursuant to this RFP will incorporate the requirements and 
specifications contained in this RFP.  All information presented in a proposer’s proposal 
will be considered binding upon selection of the successful proposer, unless otherwise 
modified and agreed to by the County during subsequent negotiations.   

14. Under the provisions of the California Public Records Act (the “Act”), Government Code 
section 6252 et seq., the County may be obligated to provide a copy of any and all 
records that the proposer provides County relating to this RFP (hereafter “Records from 
Proposer”), including those records which the proposer believes constitute confidential 
information.  If the County determines (in its sole discretion) that (i) a person/entity has 
requested a copy of records that would include Records from Proposer , and (ii) the 
County does not have sufficient direct, first-hand knowledge to independently conclude 
that such Records from Proposer are exempt from disclosure under the Act, and (iii) the 
requester is not willing to accept the proposer’s claim that the Records from Proposer 
are exempt from disclosure under the Act, the County will provide the proposer written 
notice thereof (via mail and/or email).  If the proposer does not, within seven court 
business days thereof, file the appropriate papers in San Luis Obispo County Superior 
Court (“Court”) seeking a court order preventing the County from disclosing any such 
Records from Proposer to the requester, and have its request heard by the Court within 
30 days thereof, the proposer shall be deemed to have waived any claim that  the 
Records from Proposer are exempt under the Act. (The County reserves the right to 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 7 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

issue a written extension of time if it determines (in its sole discretion) that one is 
appropriate.) Under no circumstances shall the proposer be entitled to recover from 
County any of its court costs, attorney’s fees or other litigation expenses that are related 
in any way to whether any Records from Proposer are exempt under the Act.  If any 
proposer believes that information contained in its response to this RFP should be 
protected from disclosure, the proposer MUST specifically identify the pages of the 
response that contains the information by properly marking the applicable pages and 
inserting the following notice in the front of its response:     

 
NOTICE: The data on pages _ of this response identified by an asterisk (*) 
contain technical or financial information, which are trade secrets, or 
information for which disclosure would result in substantial injury to the 
proposer’s competitive position. Proposer requests that such data be used only 
for the evaluation of the response, but understands that the disclosure will be 
limited to the extent the County considers proper under the law. If an 
agreement is entered into with the proposer, the County shall have the right to 
use or disclose the data as provided in the agreement, unless otherwise 
obligated by law.  

 
The County will not honor any attempt by proposer to designate its entire proposal as 
proprietary. If there is any dispute, lawsuit, claim or demand as to whether information 
within the response to the RFP is protected from disclosure under the Act, proposer 
shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless, the County arising out of such dispute, 
lawsuit, claim or demand. 

 
15. The proposer warrants that no official or employee of the County has an interest, has 

been employed or retained to solicit or aid in the procuring of any contract resulting 
from this RFP, if any, and further warrants that such person will not be employed in the 
performance of the contract without immediate written notice to the County. 

 
16. Firms submitting proposals shall warrant that their offer is made without any previous 

understanding, agreement or connection with any person, firm or corporation 
submitting a separate proposal for the same project and is in all respects fair, without 
outside control, collusion, fraud or otherwise illegal action. This condition shall not apply 
to proposals which are submitted by firms who have partnered with others to submit a 
cooperative proposal that clearly identifies a primary contractor and the associated 
subcontractors. 

 
17. Contractor shall comply with all laws and regulations governing nondiscrimination in 

employment, including the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the Fair Employment 
and Housing Act (California Government Code §§ 12900, et seq.), and the applicable 
regulations promulgated thereunder (2 California Code of Regulations §§ 7285, et seq.).  

17.1.  Nondiscrimination: The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by them 
during the Contract, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color or national 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 8 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

origin or other legally protected criteria in employment or the selection and 
retention of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases of 
equipment. The Contractor shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the 
discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment 
practices when the Contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the 
Regulation.  

17.2.  Solicitation for Subcontracts, Including Procurement of Materials and 
Equipment. In all solicitation, either by competitive bidding or negotiation, made by 
the Contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, including 
procurement of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or 
supplier shall be notified by the Contractor of the Contractor’s obligations under this 
Contract and the regulations. 

 
18. Unforeseen additional items and/or services may be required.  The County therefore 

reserves the right to negotiate with the successful proposer for additional items and/or 
services beyond what is described in Appendix A to be added to the final contract. 

19. Executive Order N-6-22 – Russia Sanctions: On March 4, 2022, Governor Gavin 
Newsom issued Executive Order N-6-22 (the EO) regarding Economic Sanctions against 
Russia and Russian entities and individuals. “Economic Sanctions” refers to sanctions 
imposed by the U.S. government in response to Russia’s actions in Ukraine, as well as 
any sanctions imposed under state law. By submitting a bid or proposal, Contractor 
represents that it is not a target of Economic Sanctions. Should the State or County 
determine Contractor is a target of Economic Sanctions or is conducting prohibited 
transactions with sanctioned individuals or entities, that shall be grounds for rejection 
of the Contractor’s bid/proposal any time prior to contract execution, or, if determined 
after contract execution, shall be grounds for termination by the County. 
 

20. Advanced Clean Fleets. 

20.1. Vehicles with a GVWR greater than 8,500 lbs. and light-duty package delivery vehicles 
operated in California may be subject to the California Air Resources Board 
Advanced Clean Fleets regulations. Such vehicles may therefore be subject to 
requirements to reduce emissions of air pollutants. For more information, please 
visit the CARB Advanced Clean Fleets webpage at: https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-
work/programs/advanced-clean-fleets. 

20.2. All fleets hired by the County shall be listed on the CARB Advanced Clean Fleets 
webpage as a compliant fleet or the fleet owner must provide a signed statement 
that its fleet is not subject to the High Priority and Federal Fleets regulations in title 
13, CCR, sections 2015 through 2015.6 and the State and Local Government Fleets 
regulations in title 13, CCR, sections 2013 through 2013.4. 

 

B. CHANGES TO THE RFP 
This RFP is posted on the County’s Purchasing website at 
http://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Central-Services/Purchasing-

https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-work/programs/advanced-clean-fleets
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-work/programs/advanced-clean-fleets
http://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Central-Services/Purchasing-Services/Services/Bid-RFP-Opportunities.aspx


County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 9 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

Services/Services/Bid-RFP-Opportunities.aspx. Any changes, additions, or deletions to this 
RFP will be in the form of written addenda issued by the County.  Any addenda will be 
posted on the website.  Prospective proposers must check the website for addenda or 
other relevant new information during the response period.  The County is not responsible 
for the failure of any prospective proposer to receive such addenda. All addenda so issued 
shall become a part of this RFP. Any proposer who has already submitted their proposal 
and desires to make corrections, may remove and replace their proposal on the Purchasing 
website up to the date and time for which this RFP closes.  
 

C. COMMUNICATIONS 
All communications concerning this RFP shall be directed to Taylor Mejia, 
tmejia@co.slo.ca.us.  All other communication is not binding and shall in no way modify the 
RFP or the obligations of the County.  
 
The proceedings of the Selection Committee are confidential, and members of the Selection 
Committee are not to be contacted by the proposers. After the solicitation has closed, 
proposers can view the RFP on the Purchasing website where any available award 
information will be posted and updated within the solicitation. Any questions and requests 
for information must be addressed to the Buyer. 
 

D. INSURANCE   
The selected proposer will be required to provide insurance coverage in the amount of Two 
Million Dollars ($2,000,000) Commercial General Liability (CGL) Insurance and Two Million 
Dollars ($2,000,000) Professional Liability Insurance.  See Appendix B – Sample Contract 
for complete insurance and indemnification requirements. 

 

INSURANCE REQUIRED AMOUNT 

CGL & Property Damage $ 2.0 Million per occurrence 
Professional Liability  
 

$ 2.0 Million per occurrence /  
$ 4.0 Million aggregate  

Auto Liability /Property Damage/Bodily 
Injury $ 1.0 Million per occurrence 
Workers Compensation & Disability 
Benefits $ 1.0 Million per occurrence 

 

The selected proposer shall provide within five (5) days after the Notice of Award is issued 
a certificate of liability insurance naming the County of San Luis Obispo and its employees 
and officers as additionally named insured.  This shall be maintained in full force and effect 
for the duration of the contract and must be in an amount and format satisfactory to the 
County. 

 

http://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Central-Services/Purchasing-Services/Services/Bid-RFP-Opportunities.aspx
mailto:tmejia@co.slo.ca.us


County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 10 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

E. EXCEPTIONS & DEVIATIONS 
Any exceptions to or deviations from the requirements set forth in this RFP must be 
declared in the proposal submitted by the proposer. Such exceptions or deviations must 
be segregated as a separate element of the proposal under the heading “Exceptions and 
Deviations” as instructed below in section IV. The County may waive any immaterial 
deviation or defect in a proposal.  
 

F. AWARD AND STANDARD AGREEMENT 
The County reserves the right to make awards within NINETY (90) days after the date of the 
RFP closing. The successful proposer is expected to execute a contract similar to the 
contract in Appendix B. This sample contract is for reference to the anticipated terms and 
conditions governing the County and the successful proposer. The proposer must take 
exception in their proposal to any section of the attached contract they do not agree with. 
Failing to do so will be deemed as acceptance by the proposer to the terms spelled out in 
the sample contract. The County reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to add, delete, or 
modify, or negotiate additional terms and conditions to the attached contract.  BEFORE 
BEGINNING ANY WORK OR SUBMITTING A PROPOSAL IT IS ADVISED THAT PROPOSERS 
READ THE COUNTY INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION REQUIREMENTS IN THE ATTACHED 
SAMPLE CONTRACT.  The selected proposer will be asked to provide evidence that County 
insurance requirements have been met. 
 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 11 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

IV. PROPOSAL FORMAT 
 

A qualifying proposal must address all of the following points and shall be in the format 
outlined in this section: 

 
A. Project Title 

 
B. Applicant or Firm Name 

 
C. Format and Firm Qualifications 

 
To respond to the RFP, a proposer must submit a proposal on or before the deadline. The 
proposal must be signed by a person authorized to bind the proposing firm to the 
representations, commitments and statements contained in the proposal.  The proposal 
must contain the following information and documents: 

 
a. A cover letter summarizing the key points of the proposal (2 pages max.) 

 
b. Description of Firm.  A description of the firm’s organizational structure, the 

jurisdiction in which the firm is organized and date of such organization.  In addition, 
provide a brief description of the firm’s qualifications and experience on projects of 
similar nature to those described in the proposal as well as projects/clients where 
consultant has performed as an extension of staff. 

 
c. Authorized representative of the proposer. The name, address, telephone 

number, and email address of the person authorized to represent the proposer with 
respect to all notices, negotiations, discussions, and other communications relating 
to this proposal, to any negotiation relating to the contract. 

 
d. Staffing.  Provide an organizational chart identifying: 1) the project manager for the 

work; 2) each key person who would be assigned to carry out the work, and their 
respective roles in performing the work.  Provide a separate description of the 
experience and qualifications of such manager and key persons, including a 
summary of experience on similar projects to those described in this proposal.  
Resumes should be included for all key individuals as an appendix to the submittal. 

 
e. References.  A list of no more than three references for the proposer and no more 

than three references for the subconsultants, (if any), including the names, 
addresses and telephone numbers of recent clients, preferably other public 
agencies and a listing of the specific projects and key individuals that have 
participated in them.  Include the dollar amount related to the participation.  Identify 
how much experience the firm and sub consultant has had with public agencies. 

 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 12 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

f. Scope.  A clear concise statement of the proposer’s understanding of the nature and 
extent of the services required and a specific outline to demonstrate how personnel 
would be organized to handle these services. 

 
D.   Work Plan/Technical Services 

 
a. This section should establish that the proposer understands the County’s objectives 

and requirements, demonstrate the proposer’s ability to meet those requirements 
and outline clearly and concisely the plan for accomplishing the specified work as 
outlined in Appendix A - Scope of Services.  

b. Indication of information and participation the proposer will require from County 
staff. 

 
E. Required Attachments Appendix 

 
a. Resumes.  In the Appendix, proposer shall include resumes for all key personnel, 

the specific projects and roles of the individuals, specialty licenses, certificates or 
relevant training.  List all similar work. 

 
F. Fees  

 
Propose total fixed fees as described under Project Scope.  Fees shall detail the billing rates 
for each firm’s key individuals, other position’s overhead rates and other costs.  Include any 
and all other costs for office, vehicle, cell phones, per diem, etc.  Travel cost reimbursement 
rates must conform to the County’s Travel Policy reimbursements; costs above these rates 
are not allowed.  See Appendix E – County Travel Policy. 

 

V. PROPOSAL SELECTION & CONTRACT AWARD 
 

A. SELECTION PROCEDURES 
Proposals will be evaluated by a Selection Committee comprised of one or more County 
departments and stakeholders. The Selection Committee will consider the completeness of 
a proposal and how well the proposal meets the needs of the County, Port San Luis, Cal 
Poly, and the City of Morro Bay. Evaluations will be based on criteria as outlined in Section 
B (Selection Criteria) below. All proposals in response to this RFP will be evaluated using 
the same criteria. 

The sole purpose of the selection procedure is to determine, from among the responses 
received, which one is best suited to meet the needs of the County, Port San Luis, Cal Poly, 
and the City of Morro Bay. Any final analysis or weighted score does not imply that one 
proposer is superior to another, but simply that, in the Selection Committee’s judgment, 
the selected proposer appears to offer the best overall solution for the County’s current 
and anticipated needs. 

The County may require the proposers who receive top rankings during the initial 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 13 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

evaluation phase to conduct an on-site interview or oral presentation of their proposal on 
the date specified in RFP Schedule. The County will provide a required agenda, for those 
proposers, specifying the items to be covered during the proposer’s presentation. 

The County may use a Best and Final Offer option. This allows all the proposers with 
potentially acceptable proposals the opportunity to supplement their original proposal. All 
the proposers with potentially acceptable proposals will be contacted in writing by the 
County requesting the submission of the proposer’s Best and Final Offer (“BAFO”). The 
BAFO must include all discussed and negotiated changes. 

 
B. SELECTION CRITERIA  

The County will evaluate the proposals based on, but not limited to, the following criteria. 
The objective is to choose the proposal that offers the highest quality services and will 
achieve the project’s goals and objectives within a reasonable budget. While cost is 
important, other factors are also significant and the County may not select the lowest cost 
proposal. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C. FINAL SELECTION 
The Selection Committee will formulate its recommendation for award of the Contract and 
forward its selection to the appropriate parties for approval. 

 

D. CONTRACT AWARD AND EXECUTION 
The County reserves the right to enter into a contract without further discussion of the 
submitted proposal. Therefore, the proposal should be initially submitted on the most 
favorable terms the proposer can offer. 

 

Selection Criteria – RFP (Phase One) Points Available 

Understanding of scope of work 25 

Demonstrated expertise in performing similar work  20 

Qualifications and experience of key staff 20 

Demonstrated technical ability 20 

Cost 15 

Total Points Available Per Contractor  100 

Selection Criteria – Interviews (Phase Two) Points Available 

Oral Interview (Agenda)  (Optional) 50 

Best and Final Offer  (Optional) 50 

Total Points Available Per Contractor  50 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 14 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

The County reserves the right to withdraw the RFP in whole or in part, at any time and for 
any reason. Submission of a proposal confers no rights upon a proposer and does not 
obligate the County in any manner. The County reserves the right to award no contract and 
to solicit additional offers at a later date. 

 
Each proposer, by submitting a proposal, agrees that if the County accepts its proposal, 
such proposer will furnish all items and services upon the terms and conditions in this RFP 
and subsequent contract. Proposals that do not meet the mandatory requirements set 
forth in this RFP will be considered non-compliant. Proposers may be disqualified and the 
proposal may be rejected by the County for any of, but not limited to, the following reasons: 

 
• Failure to properly respond to the RFP; 
• Evidence of collusion among the proposers submitting the proposals; 
• Failure to comply with the specification requirements of the RFP. 

 
Terms, conditions, prices, methodology, or other features of the Contractor’s proposal may 
be subject to negotiation and subsequent revision. As part of the negotiations, the 
Contractor may be required to submit additional financial information and other data to 
allow for a detailed evaluation of the feasibility, reasonableness, and acceptability of the 
proposal.  

 
The RFP document and the successful proposer’s proposal response, as amended by 
agreement between the County and the successful Contractor, including e-mail or written 
correspondence relative to the RFP, may become part of the contract documents. 
Additionally, the County may verify the successful proposer’s representations that appear 
in the proposal. Failure of the successful proposer to perform as represented may result in 
elimination of the successful proposer from competition or in contract cancellation or 
termination. 

 
The requirements listed in this RFP are not negotiable and will remain unchanged unless 
the County determines that a change in such requirements is in the best interest of the 
County. 

 
The County expressly reserves the right, in its sole judgment, to accept or reject any or all 
proposals, with or without cause, modify, alter, waive any technicalities or provisions, or to 
accept the proposal which, in its sole judgment, is determined to be the best evaluated 
offer resulting from negotiation and taking into consideration other evaluation factors set 
forth in the RFP. The successful proposer will be expected to enter into a contract with the 
County. If the successful proposer fails to sign a contract within fifteen (15) business days, 
unless the County grants an extension, following the delivery of the contract documents, 
the County may elect to negotiate a contract with the next-highest ranked proposer. 

 
The County shall not be bound, or in any way obligated, until both parties have executed a 
contract. The selected proposer may not incur any chargeable costs prior to final contract 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 15 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

execution. The foregoing should not be interpreted to prohibit either party from proposing 
additional contract terms and conditions during the negotiation of the final Contract. 

 
The supplies and services are to be provided in compliance with all applicable state and 
federal standards, rules and regulations.  The County reserves the right to request 
additional written and/or oral information from proposers at any time before contract 
award, in order to obtain clarification of their responses. 

 

E. PROTEST OF AWARD 
Any objection to the County’s final decision will be handled according to applicable state 
and local procurement laws. 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 16 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

VI. DEFINITIONS 
 
 

Response: The written, signed and sealed complete document submitted according to the 
proposal instructions. Response does not include any verbal or documentary interaction apart 
from submittal of a formal Response. 
 
Request/Proposal/Bid: The completed and released document, including all subsequent 
addenda, made publicly available to all prospective proposers. 
 
We/Us/Our: Terms that refer to the County of San Luis Obispo, a duly organized public entity. 
They may also be used as pronouns for various subsets of the County organization, including, as 
the context will indicate. 
 
Purchasing: The Contracts and Purchasing Services Division of the Department of Central 
Services. 

 
Department/Division: The department or division requesting the goods or services contained 
in this request, for which this PROPOSAL is prepared and which will be the end user of the 
requested goods or services. 

 
You/Your: Terms that refer to businesses/individuals submitting a response. The term may apply 
differently as the context will indicate. 
 
Supplier: A business entity engaged in the business of providing services. 

 
Proposer: A business entity submitting a Response to this proposal. Suppliers which may express 
interest in this proposal, but who do not submit a Response, have no obligations with respect to 
the proposal requirements. 

 
Contractor: The proposer(s) whose Response to this proposal is evaluated as meeting the needs 
of the County. Contractor(s) will be selected for award, and will enter into a contract(s) for provision 
of the services described in this proposal. 

 
Contractor’s Employee: All persons who can be offered to provide the services described in the 
proposal. All employees of the Contractor shall be covered by the insurance programs normally 
provided to persons employed by a company (ex: Worker’s Comp, SDI, etc.). 
 
Mandatory: A required element of this request/proposal/bid. Failure to satisfy any element of 
this request/proposal/bid defined as “mandatory” will disqualify the particular response. 
 
Default: A failure to act as required by any contract resulting from this request, which may trigger 
the right to sue or may excuse the other party's obligation to perform under the contract. 
 
Cancellation/Termination: A unilateral or mutual decision to not complete an exchange or 
perform an obligation under any contract resulting from this request. 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 17 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

 
“Or Equal”: A statement used for reference to indicate the character or quality desired in a 
requested product or service. When specified in a proposal document, equal items will be 
considered, provided the response clearly describes the article. Offers of equal items must state 
the brand and number, or level of quality. When brand, number, or level of quality is not stated by 
proposer, the offer will be considered exactly as specified. The determination of the Purchasing 
Agent as to what items are equal is final and conclusive. 
 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 18 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

APPENDIX A – SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 
The County of San Luis Obispo (County) is currently soliciting proposals for professional services 
to conduct a comprehensive analysis of the San Simeon Community Services District’s (SSCSD)’s 
existing and future governance structures and services to be provided related to SSCSD’s 
dissolution application submitted to LAFCO.  The proposed analysis is intended to address LAFCO’s 
request for information response to SSCSD.  
 
The dissolution application, materials submitted to LAFCO by SSCSD, and other related 
information can be found here: https://slo.lafco.ca.gov/lafco-no-2-r-24-dissolution-of-san-
simeon-community-service-district. LAFCO’s response to the SSCSD about their application can 
be found here: https://slo.lafco.ca.gov/files/ab8dee924/30-Day+Review+of+Application+2-R-
24.pdf.  
 
The analysis should identify the entirety of SSCSD’s current challenges, regulatory issues and 
future obligations, potential benefits, potential impacts to its rate payers, etc. The analysis shall 
include evaluating the formation of a County Service Area as well as all other available options 
(consolidation, etc.) to administer, manage, and operate all the current services and future 
obligations of the SSCSD.  It is important to identify and analyze all potential options to be 
considered by all agencies impacted as well as for the community of San Simeon to have a 
complete picture of these options and associated costs. 
 
The analysis should attempt to conclude or recommend the most appropriate plan for service for 
all existing and future obligations of the SSCSD should a dissolution be approved.  The consultant 
should develop applicable criteria for evaluating each option such as feasibility, long-term viability, 
cost (capital and annual operation and maintenance), timeliness, and political impact. The analysis 
process will require agency coordination and potential community involvement, to understand 
organizational, operational and political impacts of potential reorganization or consolidation 
options for the plan for services.   
 
This analysis will not develop the plan for service, and is limited to reviewing, evaluating, and 
recommending the best approach for reorganizing or consolidating the government services of 
the SSCSD should a dissolution proceed in the future.  The plan of service may differ for each of 
the services to be provided.  Pending an agreeable plan of service, a separate and future effort will 
be undertaken to fully develop each plan of service. 
 
The existing SSCSD services that need to be reviewed, evaluated and considered for potential plan 
for service, include: Water, Wastewater Collection and Treatment, Weed Abatement, Street 
Lighting, and Roads. 
 

https://slo.lafco.ca.gov/lafco-no-2-r-24-dissolution-of-san-simeon-community-service-district
https://slo.lafco.ca.gov/lafco-no-2-r-24-dissolution-of-san-simeon-community-service-district
https://slo.lafco.ca.gov/files/ab8dee924/30-Day+Review+of+Application+2-R-24.pdf
https://slo.lafco.ca.gov/files/ab8dee924/30-Day+Review+of+Application+2-R-24.pdf


County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 19 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

The following sections will describe the requested scope of services for the feasibility analysis for 
each plan for service.   
 

WATER 

1. Assessment of Physical Assets. The consultant shall collect data related to the water system 
as needed to evaluate the existing water supply, treatment, storage, and distribution 
assets, conditions, and needs.  The consultant shall summarize the existing condition of the 
water supply, treatment, storage, and distribution system and shall identify major system 
deficiencies, if any, and major upcoming repairs or replacements required.  A cost estimate 
shall be assigned to each deficiency, repair and/or replacement. 

2. High Level Water Distribution System Hydraulic Connections and Considerations.  The 
consultant shall review existing data and system maps to estimate the potential benefits of 
merging and the costs of interties to nearby water systems.  A detailed hydraulic model is 
not requested as part of this effort, but if such modeling is required to solidify the plan for 
service then these costs should be included and considered in the feasibility analysis of 
proposed options.  

a. Consultant shall meet with and interview applicable stakeholders/agency staff to 
identify potential options for reorganization or consolidation of systems, as well as 
identify benefits and any anticipated impacts because of reorganization or 
consolidation of systems. 

3. Assessment of Managerial/Governance Structures and Capability.  The consultant shall 
review stakeholder provided data to understand and assess the management and 
operations of each of the identified project stakeholders as related to taking over the 
existing and future water service needs.  Water system stakeholders as identified by LAFCO 
include SSCSD, County of San Luis Obispo.  The consultant shall identify any other 
applicable agencies that should be considered stakeholders.  Assessment of governance 
structures and capability of each identified stakeholder as specified below:   

a. Existing service area governance, management and staffing 
b. Existing service area maps, population and demographics 
c. Existing service area rates 
d. Existing service area policies and procedures 

4. Assessment of Financial Assets.  The consultant shall review the financial condition of the 
project stakeholders as existing and post reorganization or consolidation. The consultant 
should consider the following, and identify any other pertinent considerations, as part of 
their assessment of the financial situation for each stakeholder: 

a. Existing rate structures 
b. Current and planned debt 
c. Current and future capital improvement/infrastructure needs 
d. Post reorganization or consolidation rate estimation, assuming the deficiencies, 

repairs or replacements identified in task 1 are constructed or implemented 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 20 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

5. Water System Feasibility Analysis.  The consultant shall evaluate the pros and cons for each 
feasible potential plan for service and make conclusions and recommendations based on 
identified criteria, such as feasibility, long-term viability, cost (capital and annual operation 
and maintenance), timeliness, and political impact of pursuing identified plan for service.  
The water system feasibility analysis shall only be complete if it includes conclusions 
(potential reorganized or consolidated services description), recommendations (including 
further study recommendations), cost impacts (post consolidation rate estimate), and local 
governmental accessibility improvements (i.e. management strategy and staffing 
considerations). 

  

WASTEWATER COLLECTION AND TREATMENT 

1. Assessment of Physical Assets. The consultant shall collect data related to the wastewater 
system as needed to evaluate the existing wastewater collection system, treatment system, 
disposal system, and recycled water distribution system assets, conditions, and needs. The 
consultant shall summarize the existing condition of the wastewater collection, treatment, 
disposal, and recycled water system and shall identify major system deficiencies, if any, and 
major upcoming repairs or replacements required.  A cost estimate shall be assigned to 
each deficiency, repair and/or replacement. 

2. Wastewater System Connections and Considerations.  The consultant shall review existing 
data and system maps to estimate the potential benefits of merging or consolidating 
wastewater services, and the costs of interties to nearby wastewater systems.  A detailed 
hydraulic model is not requested as part of this effort, but if such modeling is required to 
solidify the plan for service, then these costs should be included and considered in the 
feasibility analysis of proposed options. 

a. The consultant shall consider any current or legacy agreements for wastewater 
collection and treatment service between SSCSD, State Parks Hearst Castle, Hearst 
Corporation, or other entities. Clarification is needed as to how State Parks, Hearst 
Corporation, etc. would continue to obtain service, as they are an existing customer 
of SSCSD. If a CSA is formed, the affected State Parks and/or Hearst Corporation 
flows currently served by SSCSD would need to be included in its boundary. Evaluate 
the feasibility of maintaining an outside user agreement in light of regulatory 
requirements and the impact on any potential boundary change or formation 
needed to address this issue. 

b. Evaluate the permit conditions of the existing Waste Discharge Requirements (WDR) 
Order No. R3-2022-0003 issued by the Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control 
Board (RWQCB), including the historical flows, effluent concentration limits, and 
design capacity. The evaluation shall include a review of the current and 
potential/anticipated regulatory limits for flows, effluent treatment quality, and 
other factors impacting the ability of the existing wastewater system to meet permit 
requirements. 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 21 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

c. Evaluate the permit conditions of the Coastal Development Permit (CDP) 3-19-0020, 
dated July 18, 2019, which requires the existing wastewater collection, treatment, 
and disposal system to relocate facilities and meet timeline and progress reviews 
terms and conditions. Assess the preliminary costs required to meet the CDP 
requirements including local planning issues, regulatory considerations, and 
financial impacts related to wastewater system relocation. 

d. Consultant shall meet with and interview applicable stakeholders/agency staff to 
identify potential options for reorganization or consolidation of systems and 
evaluate the risks and benefits of the potential options. 

3. Assessment of Managerial/Governance Structures and Capability.  The consultant shall 
review stakeholder provided data to understand and assess the management and 
operations of each of the identified project stakeholders as related to taking over the 
existing and future water service needs.  Wastewater system stakeholders as identified by 
LAFCO include SSCSD, County of San Luis Obispo, California State Parks, and Hearst 
Corporation.  The consultant shall identify any other applicable agencies that should be 
considered stakeholders.  Assessment of governance structures and capability of each 
identified stakeholder as specified below:   

a. Existing service area governance, management and staffing 
b. Existing service area maps, population and demographics 
c. Existing service area rates 
d. Existing service area policies and procedures 
e. Post reorganization or consolidation rate estimation, assuming the deficiencies, 

repairs or replacements identified in task 1 are constructed or implemented 
 

4. Wastewater System Feasibility Analysis.  The consultant shall evaluate the pros and cons 
for each feasible potential plan for service and make conclusions and recommendations 
based on identified criteria, such as feasibility, long-term viability, cost (capital and annual 
operation and maintenance), timeliness, and political impact of pursuing identified plan for 
service.  The wastewater system feasibility analysis shall only be complete if it includes 
conclusions (potential reorganized or consolidated services description), 
recommendations (including further study recommendations), cost impacts (post 
consolidation rate estimate), and local governmental accessibility improvements (i.e. 
management strategy and staffing considerations). 

 

REORGANIZATION OR CONSOLIDATION RATE ESTIMATES 

The consultant shall tabulate and consolidate all identified water and wastewater costs and 
develop a rate impact sheet using the current loan terms of the USDA Rural Development Rural 
Utilities program.   



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 22 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

WEED ABATEMENT 

The consultant shall evaluate weed abatement requirements and provide a report and plan to 
meet the minimum requirements set forth.  

STREET LIGHTING 

The consultant shall evaluate what processes are in place and provide a report of what activities 
would need to be transferred to a new entity.   
 
ROADS 

The Consultant shall: 

1. Identify the unmaintained County roads and categorize by name, length and Pavement 
Condition Index. 

2. Establish an inventory of road related infrastructure such as, but not limited to culverts, 
drainage inlets and outlets, signs, street lights and bridges, with an estimated condition of 
each asset. 

3. Identify any known American with Disabilities Act barriers to travel. 

4. Estimate the cost of bringing the unmaintained County roads into the County road system, 
and calculate the amount of linear feet the unmaintained roads front private parcels that 
would be subject to an assessment. 

 

OTHER ISSUES 

Investigate and report on the Pico Stairway reconstruction project, including an estimated cost. 

During the course of their report, should the consultant discover any other related issues or areas 
of concern, the consultant shall list them in an appendix entitled “Other Issues”.  No further 
analysis is needed unless directed by the County. 

 

Comprehensive Analysis Report  

The consultant shall develop each potential plan for service as specified above and incorporate 
developments into a comprehensive analysis of the SSCSD, summarizing potential governance 
options.  The consultant will prepare a comprehensive analysis report that will generally follow the 
anticipated outline below; however, the consultant shall propose an improved scope of services 
and/or outline that meets the intended purpose of this work effort which is to summarize, analyze 
and recommend most appropriate governing options so that all impacted agencies and the 
community may make a fully informed decision when considering the proposed dissolution of 
SSCSD. 

 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 23 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

Report Outline 

1. Introduction and Purpose 
2. Existing Service Area Descriptions (Water, Wastewater Collection and Treatment, Weed 

Abatement, Street Lighting, and Roads) 
3. Potential Reorganized or Consolidated Services Description 
4. Technical Governance, Managerial and Staffing Considerations 
5. Technical Managerial Financial Considerations 
6. Post Reorganization or Consolidation Rate Estimates 
7. Other Issues (if any) 
8. Conclusions and Recommendations 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 24 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

APPENDIX B – SAMPLE CONTRACT 
 

(Attached as a separate document.) 
 
 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 25 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

APPENDIX C – LOCAL VENDOR PREFERENCE 
 
The County has established a local vendor preference.  When quality, service, and other relevant factors 
are equal, responses to Requests for Proposals will be evaluated with a preference for local vendors.  
Note the following exceptions: 
 

1. Those contracts which State Law or, other law or regulation precludes this local 
preference. 

 2. Public works construction projects. 
 
A "local" vendor preference will be approved as such when, 1) The vendor conducts business in a fully 
staffed office with a physical address within the County of San Luis Obispo; 2) The vendor holds a valid 
business license issued by the County or a city within the County; and 3) The vendor has conducted 
business at the local address for not less than six (6) months prior to the due date of this Request for 
Proposal. 
 
Proposals received in response to this Request for Proposal will be evaluated by the Selection 
Committee considering the local vendor preference described above when quality, service and other 
relevant factors are equal.  The burden of proof will lie with proposers relative to verification of "local" 
vendor preference.  Should any questions arise, please contact a buyer at (805) 781-5200.   

  
YES 

 
NO 

 
Do you claim local vendor preference? 

  

 
Do you conduct business in an office with a physical location 
within the County of San Luis Obispo? 

  

 
Business Address:   
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 
Years at this Address:  
 
Does your business hold a valid business license issued by the 
County or a City within the County? 

  

 
Name of Local Agency which issued license:
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 

 
Business Name: __________________________________________________________________________________  

Authorized Individual: ______________________________  Title: ________________________________________  

Signature: ___________________________________________  Dated: ______________________________________  

 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 26 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

APPENDIX D – RISK ASSESSMENT QUESTIONNAIRE 
(Required Submittal) 

 
 

1. List the full names of any partners, owners, officers or other persons occupying a 
position of authority or responsibility in your organization, as well as their Unique 
Entity ID (SAM) number. 

Unique Entity ID (SAM) Number Organization 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

NOTE:  A Unique Entity ID (SAM) number is not required but must be listed if the 
entity has one. 

 

2. Have the individual(s) in item #1 been subject to bankruptcy, insolvency or 
receivership proceedings in the last five (5) years?  Yes     No      If yes, please 
enclose details. 

 

3. Has your business/company/organization filed for bankruptcy within the last five (5) 
years?  Yes     No      If so, please enclose details. 

 

4. Has your business/company/organization/individual(s) in item #1 ever had a 
contract for the general type of services/product sought by the County terminated 
for non-compliance or inadequate performance?  Yes     No      If yes, please 
enclose details. 

 

5. Has your business/company/organization/individual(s) in item #1 ever defaulted 
on a contract for the general type of services/product being sought by the County?   

Yes     No   If yes, please enclose details. 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 27 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

 

6. Has there been, in the last five (5) years, or is there now pending or threatened, any 
litigation, arbitration, governmental proceeding or regulatory proceeding involving 
claims in excess of $100,000 with respect to the performance of any services or the 
provision of any product by your business/company/organization/individual(s) in 
item #1?  Yes     No      If yes, please enclose details. 

 

7. Has your business/company/organization/individual(s) in item #1 ever defaulted in 
fulfilling all of its obligations relating to the payment of county taxes, fees, or other 
obligations?   

Yes     No      If yes, please enclose details. 

 

8. In the last five (5) years, has your business/company/organization/individual(s) in 
item #1, been or currently involved in any action, audit or investigation brought by 
any federal government agency or authority or by any state or local governmental 
agency?  Yes     No       If yes, please enclose details. 

 

9. In the last five (5) years, has your business/company/organization/individual(s) in 
item #1 been debarred or suspended for any reason by any federal, state or local 
government or refrained from bidding on a project due to an agreement with such 
governmental agency?  Yes     No      If yes, please attach a full explanation. 

 

10. In the past five (5) years, has your business/company/organization/individual(s) in 
item #1 had its surety called upon to complete any contract, whether government 
or private sector?  Yes     No      If yes, please enclose details. 

 

11. In the past five (5) years, has your business/company/organization/individual(s) in 
item #1 had a revocation, suspension or disbarment of any business or professional 
permit and/or license?  Yes     No      If yes, please enclose details. 

 

12. Has your firm or any of its owners, officers or partners ever been convicted of a 
federal or state crime of fraud, theft, or any other act of dishonesty?   

Yes     No      If “yes,” identify on a separate signed page the person or persons 
convicted, the court (the county if a state court, the district or location of the federal 
court), the year and the criminal conduct. 

 
 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 28 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

Signature 
 

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY CERTIFIES THAT THE RESPONSES PROVIDED ARE CORRECT AND 
TRUTHFUL TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND FOR THOSE RESPONSES GIVEN WHICH ARE 
BASED ON INFORMATION AND BELIEF, THOSE RESPONSES ARE TRUE AND CORRECT BASED 
ON MY PRESENT BELIEF AND INFORMATION.  
 
Dated this ______ day of __________________ of the year _________ 
 
Name of organization: _____________________________________________ 
 
Signature: _______________________________________________________ 
 
Printed Name and title: _____________________________________________ 



County of San Luis Obispo           RFP #1881          January 3, 2025     Page 30 
San Simeon Community Services District Governmental Assessment 

 

 

APPENDIX F – PROPOSER CHECKLIST 
 
 
Please check to ensure all documents listed below are included with your submittal. 

 

Technical Proposal (Required)………………………………………………………………………………………..□ 
     (Including resumes) 

Local Vendor Preference………………………………………………………………………………………………..□ 

Risk Assessment Questionnaire (Required)……………………………………………………………………□ 

 



8 D. Discussion and Approval of the Replacement of the Broken Water Meters 
 
Key Conditions for Meter Replacement: 

1. Age: Most meters have a lifespan of 15-20 years. Replacing them once this timeframe has 
been exceeded is crucial for accurate readings. 

2. Inaccurate Readings: If the water bill is unusually high or low without an obvious cause, 
this may indicate a malfunctioning meter. 

3. Visible Damage: Any physical damage to the meter body or register can affect its 
functionality, requiring a replacement. 

4. Leaks Around the Meter: Leaks near the meter housing might point to issues with the 
meter or its connections. 

5. Outdated Technology: Older meters might not be compatible with modern billing systems 
or lack advanced features. 

6. High Error Rate: Meters exceeding a 1.5% error rate (per the American Water Works 
Association standard) need replacing. 

Meters Identified for Replacement: 
 Acct#s. 4, 126, 211 (9065 Hearst Dr. - Sea Breeze Inn) 

o Meter Type: 2" 
o Issue: Frequent rereads requested by the customer/District, with often erratic 

readings 
 Acct#s. 291, 292, 293, 418 (9390 Castillo - Silver Surf Motel) 

o Meter Type: 2" 
o Issue: Frequent rereads requested by the customer/District, with often 

erratic reading 
• Acct# 432 (432 Pico - Liquor Store).  

o Meter Type: 5/8" Digital 
o Issue: Frequent rereads 

• Acct# 492 (532 Casa Del Mar - Individual Condo) 
o Meter Type: 5/8" Digital 
o Issue: Digital reading capability is broken and cannot be read manually. 

• Acct#s 495, 496, 497 (9070 Castillo Dr - Motel 6) 
o Meter Type: 2" 
o Issue: Frequent rereads requested by the customer/District, with often erratic 

readings. 
For 10 Commercial and two single meter replacements  
TOTAL = $23,310.00 + 5 % contingency = $24,475.00 
Meters = $21,210.00 
Labor = each meter, +/-90 minutes = $175.00 each X 12 = $2100.00 
Contingency = $1165.00 
 

Inventory of Meters to be Replaced: 
• 5/8" Meter (1) 
• 2" Meters (11) 

Meter Prices: 
• 5/8" Sensus iPearl Meter: $330.00 
• 1.5" Sensus C2 Meter: $2055.00 


